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Rao, Neomi J. 

From: Whlte House Communications [WhiteHousetommunications@WhiteHouse.Gov] 
' . 

Sent: Monday, May 08, 2006 8:02 PM 

To: Rao, Neomi J, 

Subject: SETTING THE RECORD STRAIGHT: The ABA Finds Brett Kavanaugh Is "Indeed Qualified 
.To Serve OnThe Federal Bench" · 

Attachments: 5.8.06 Kavanaugh.pdf 

Setting The Record Straight: 

The ABA Finds Brett Kavanaugh Is "Indeed Qualified To Serv~ On The 
Federal Bench"' 

,"In 42 votes cast in the three ABA reviews, all 42 found Mr. Kavanaugh to be well qwalified or qualified to serve on 
the DC Circuit. The ABA itself says that even the lowest of the three ratings is, in its words, 'a very high 
standard."' 

-White House Deputy Press Secretary Dana Perino. 
May 8, 2006 

The Associated Press: "ABA Downgrades Rating For White House Aide From Well-Q~aljfied To Qualified.". 
(L~urie Kellman, "ABA Downgrades Rating For White House Aide From Well-Qualified To Qualified," The Associated Press, 5/8/06) 

But According To ABA Review Panel Chairman Stephen Tober, Kavanaugh Is "Indeed Qualified To 
Serve On The Federal Bench." TOBER: "This nominee enjoys· a solid reputation for integrity, intellectual 
capacity, and writing and analytical ability .... A substantial majority of the Standing Committee believes that Mr. 
Kavanaugh is indeed qualified to serve on the federal bench." (Stephen L. Tober, Committee On The Judiciary, U.S. 
Senate, Testimony, 5/8/06) · 

ToberHimself Notes That"There Is No Bright-Line Litmus Test As To Whether A Nominee Is 'Well 
Qualified' Or 'Qualified."' TOBER: "ltis, at its most basic, the difference between.the 'highest standard' antj a 
'very highstandard."' (Stephen L, Tober, Committee On The Judiciary, U.S. Senate, Testimony; 5/8/06) 

A~cordingTo The ABA's "Backgrounder," A ~·Qualified" Rating Means The Committee Believes A 
Nominee Will Be Able To Perform "All Duties And Responsibilities;' Of A Federal Judge. TOBER: "The 
Backgrounder also makes clear that '(t)he rating of 'Qualified' mecms that the nominee meets the Committee's 
very high standards with respect to integrity, professional competence and judicial temperament and that the 
Committee believes that the nominee will be able to perform satisfactorily all of the duties and responsibilities 
required by the high office ofa federal judge."' (Stephen L. Tober, Committee On The ~udiciary, U.S. Senate, Testirnony, 

. . 5/8/06) 

Sen. Arlen Specter (R-PA): "[The ABA Rating Is] Just A Shading . ... He's Got A Very Strong Record.'' 
(Laurie Kellman, "ABA Downgrades Rating For White House Aide From Well~Qualified To duaHfi€ld," the AssociatedPress, 5/8/06) 

Brett M. Kavanaugh Is Superbly Qualified For The D.C. ~ircui.t 

51912006 
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' . 

Througho'ut His Career, Brett Kavanaugh Has Demonstrated Leg
1

al Excellence And The Fair:Minded 
Temperament To Serve As A Federal Appellate Judge. Kavanaugh has an extraordinaryrange of 
experience in the public and private sectors. He has dedicated the majority of his 16 years of practice to public 
service as .an appellate lawyer, a government lawyer, and an .Assistant to the President. · 

Kavanaugh Now Serves As Assistant To The President And Staff Secretary. He is responsible for · 
c.oordinating virtually all doc.uments to and from the President. He previously served as Senior Associate . 
Counsel and Associate Counsel to the President, during which time he worked on numerous constitutional, 
legal, and ethical issues. 

. . . . . . . 

Prior To His Service In This Administration, Kavanaugh Was A Partner At The Law Firm OfKirkland & . 
Ellis, Where His Practice Focused On Appellate Matters. Kavanaugh also served as an Associate Co.unsel 
in the Office of Independent Counsel, where he handled a number of difficult constitutional issues presented 
durin.g that investigation, Kavanaugh specialized in appellate law and has extensive experience in the Federal 
appellate courts, both as a law clerk and as counsel. Kavanaugh has argued both civil and criminal matters • 
before the U.S. Supreme Court and appellate courts throughout the country. . 

. . 

Kavanaugh Clerked For U.S. Supreme Court Justice Anthony Kennedy, As WeH As Judge Alex Kozinski 
Of The Ninth Circuit And Judge Walter Stapleton Of The Third Circuit. Prior to his Supreme Cou.rt 
clerkship, Kavanaugh earned a prestigious fellowship in the Office of.the Solicitor General of the United States. 
The Solicitor General's office represents the Un.ited States before the Supreme Court. 

The Arnerican Bar Association (ABA) ·Has Consistently Rated Kavanaugh "WeH Qualified" Or 
"Qualified'' To Serve On The D:C. Circuit.. The ABA has rated Brett Kavanaugh qualified to serve on the D.C . 

. Circuit on three.separate occasions. In other words, 42 out of 42 ABAindividual ratings found that Mr. 
Kavanaugh is either Well Qualified or Qualified to. serve on the D.C. Circuit. Anq the majority of those 42 raters 
found Mr. Kavanaugh to be WeHQualified to serve on the D.C. Circuit. · 

Kavanaugh Has Impeccable Academic Credentials. He received his B.A. cum laude from Yale College and 
his law degree froni Yale Law SQhool, where he served as Notes. Editor of the Yale Law Journal. 

.. ,,. '. ' •. . 

Kavanaugh Has Offered His Legal Expertise And Personal Time To Serving His Community. While in 
private practice, Kavanaugh tciok on pro bona matters, including representation of the Adat Shalom · 
congregation in Montgomery County, Maryland, against the attempt to s. top construction. of a synagogue in the 

. . 

county. ,Kavanaugh also represented, on a pro bona basis, six-year-old Elian Gonzalez after the Immigration 
and Naturalization 'service decided to return him to Cuba. · · 

You are currently sub.scribed to Communications .Update - EOP as: 
neomij._:rao@who.eop.gov .. · . 
To unsubscribe send a blank email to: 

:. le.ave-whi tehouse-comtnunications..:update,.,eop-13 0 83 9 8I@list. whitehouse. gov 

5/9/2006 
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. Rao, Neomi'J. 

From: Kavanaugh, Brett M. 

Sent: Tuesday, May 09, 2006 11 :52 AM 

To: Miers, Harriet; Kelley, William K.; Rao, Neomi J. 

Subject: .Ed Whelan post on National Review '. .. 
f I~ 

Kavanaugh and the ABA · 
[Ed Whelan 05/09 11 :38 AM] .. . . . 
In advance of this afternoon.' s hearing, l have a few comments on the ABA' s statement yesterday on 
Brett Kavanaugh's nomination to the D.C. Circuit. (I have a copy of the statementbuthave .. not been 
able to locate an online link} These comments supplement my earlier post, whicp explained {as the. 
ABA's statement alSo does)the modest nature of the change in Kavanaugh's A]3A.rating. 

L Kavanaugh's latest rating-overall "qualified''~onsists ofa "substantial majority" ofthe ABA 
committee findinghim "qualified" and a minority findinghfm"well qualified". As the ABA statement· 
explains, the differehce between "well ·qualified" and "qualified" is "the .difference bet.ween the 'highest 
standard' .and a 'very high standard"'., Specifically, the "qualified" rating "meansthat the nominee 
meets the Committee's very high standards with respect to integrity, professional competence and : _ 
judic1al temperament and that the Committee believes thatthe nominee will be able t6 perform · · 
. satisfactorily_ all oftl,ie duties and responsibilities requfred by the high office of a federal judge.~' 

Thus, what is most significant about the committ~e' s rec~11t fating is that all the members ofthe 
committee have found that Kavanaugh, at the very least, meets these "very high standards''. No noise 

.. about the modest change.in Kavanaugh's rating from"substantial majority well qualified; minority 
qualified" to "substantial majority qualified; minority well qualified" should obscure theABA's }?ottom 

· · 1ine. · · · · 

·· 2. It seems to me unfair to Kavanaugh for the committee to have made public a handful of anonymous 
negative statements withoutalso disclosing some of'the much larger universe of very positive statements 
that 1underlie the ABA' s rating. · · __ _ 

J • ' : ' ' • 

3. As this Washington Times aTtiGJe makes clear, there are serious reasons to question the objectivity· 
· and fitness of Marna Tucker, the new D.C. Circuit representative on the ABA committee wlio led the . 

. . supplementaLinvestigation of Kavanaugh: · · 

• '.1· 

Washington divorce la\vyet Marna S. Tucker; a registered Democrat, conducted the most 
recent interview of Mr. Kavanaugh and delivered testimony on behalf of the ABA over the 
telephone yesterday for the Judiciary Committee hearing today. · 

- .Ms. Tucker.hasdonated more than $10,000 to Democratic c~ndidates and causes, according:.· 
to FederalEleetion Commission records at www~politicalmoneyline.com, a·Web site that 

· tracks campaign COI].tributions. She has never given toRepublicans,accordingtoJhe site. 

The Washington Post desciibed her as a "pfominent liberal" in 1991 and the f~llowing year '­
noted her friendship with Hillary Rodham Clinton, now a Democratic. senator from New 

. ·York. ' · 

'• ;' 

5/9,/2006 
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Ms. Tucker also isa founding member and board director of the National Worrien's Law 
Center, an organization committed to abortion rights and other liberal causes. · 

The fact that Ms. Tucker is a divorce lawyer is striking. I can'tthink of a specialty that has less relatipn 
to the work of the D.C. Circuit. It is bizarre that, with all the attorneys in D.C who have practices that 
relate to the D.C. Circuit, the ABA would pick a divorce lawyer to be the D.C. Circuit representative. 

\ '· ' ' 

( 
I 

5/9/2006 
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My.· name is ,Ste~~en · L:· 'T()ber ... I 

:,,·, 

,.·, ·' 

. : ' . 
,I·, 

,1' I 

. H~rnpshfre, and I am the Chair 'Of the American Bar Ass0Ciation's, Standing (:ommjtt~e .·· 
'' ' - .. ; . . . . .'' ... 

,·,··_1., ·.,;' 

Federal Judiciary.. J am sllbmittingthis writte~ statement for the h~<ldJ1g record;fro 

.. p~esent' the Standing Cominittee;·1 supplemeht~l pe~r ~eview·evaluation of the nqmiriati~~ 
•'I " • ~. '' ' . ('" . , •"• /" ' ! :, " •. ; •.,' I •,, , ;, • e : • , •, I T, , 

' ' ; __ ,';·:; 

,.of Brett. Michael ·Kavariaygh ttl serve on th~' United States C6urf' of A~pe~l~·'fo~' the 
~ , ' '· " : '' " . ' .,, ' , .. ·, 

· bistriC:t of .. C6iurribia Circuit. This· statement is 

r am pleased. to·. sun;iinarize the: Standi,ng Comm:itt~~'s :general ~investi~iiti.ve· 
" , , ' , " •. , ' • \\ • '• ' ~ • , • -\ 1 

·· prbcedures :ami pres~nt, an overview 'of ~he inv~stigation of the. nominee. In the -~~·cond 
, , . , I " I ' 

) ' 

section, l will explain:'.the process m 
"« _-:; 

.'Standin~·Co~mi~~~'srating. ·. · .. · '' . . , •'' 

•' 

Before. ciiscussing .the .specifics qf .this.case, I w6uld like to 
' • ' " ' ,. • ., ' •• • " ~ t" ., • • • 

~ I 

_ ...... ,, 
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. col1tained in the Committee'~ booklet '(comm01;ily des~iibed as our,BackgrounJ.~r), 

.· ·· St;ndjniCommHtee on Federal f udjda;y: Wha;li,Is.andHow,It Works (2005). 

The ABA Standing Comqiittee investig~tes ~nd consid~rs only the professional 
·, ·.:>. \ , 

'•;'. 

quaii'ficati~ns of a nominee. -~ his or her compe~~nce, integrity and judicialtemperament 
" . . ' . ~ ' ,· . 

Ideology 6t political considerations are not taken into account. .. O~r proces.s~sa~d ., 

procedhres are c~r~fully structured, to produce a'. fai~, thohmgh a119 .9bjedive pe~r;'. . 

· evaluation of each nominee. A number of factors are in~estigated, inclµding intellect~al 
~~·· '. . 

capacity, judgment, writing and analytical ability; knbwledge 9f the' la\\!, breadth_ of 

ptofessional experience; courtroom exp.eri'ence; 'character; integrity, freedom fr6in O'.ias; 
. ' 

. commitinent to equal justice under the . la\V: and general reputation in: 'the leg~!· 

community. 

The investigation is ordinarily assfgned, to the C9mmitteem.errtbet resict\ng in the: 
, . •. . .. •,. . ' 

. jucli'cJal .circuit in which the vaca11cY: exists, although, it ~ay be, conducted by another 
. . " ~ 

member pr former member... In the 6lirrent case, Pamela Bresnahan conducted the . 
. . . . ... ·. • .. ·· ". ... . ,.\'. ~. 

original form.al investigation in '2003, an.d updated her:report in.· 2oo5, as the.District of 
,v.-•.. 

Cblµmbia· Circuit representative on tHe Stanging ·coinmitte~: Marna Tucker, who · 
.i, . 

succeeded Attorney Bresnahan as the bi~trict of Cohinibia Circuit representative on the 
., ... " ·: . .·: ·,: .. ···,; .. :. ., ., .. · 

. . ,', : . ,_..: . 

. '· . Standing Committee .iri .August 2005; subsequently conducteq a f,uf1her,supplem,ent11L 

evaluation of the nomin~e. 1 

. · .. ; .. '~ .... ' . . \ . . . : ' . . . ' ' . \ , . 

. The>investigatdr ·starts his or 'lier in~estU~atibn by reviewing 'the~candidate's . 
'·· 'i 

responses to the public portion 6fthe Syriate JudiCiary Committee ques,tionnair~' Th~s:. 

responses provioe the opportunity for .the nominee to. set forth his: or her qµai_ificatiqns, 

1 M~r~~Tucker'~as j9ined by Federal Circ¥itr~presentative.John Payton. Jot the i~tetyiew oqhe.nominee. 
' . . . . • • \.' ' , ' . . • ',. i . . M 

'<.! 

'.,I 
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incl riding . professional· experiern:e; significant .cases handled :and major writings'. The 

inyestigator · makes extensive ·. use' df the questionnaire · during the course of .the 

investigation. : In additi~n; the investigator: ~xal11ines the legal ~ritihgs of ~he nominee .. . . · - ' . .'. - ,, . , '. .. '. . .. . 
"' '- .. :..:. -

, and personally conducts. extensive confidential interviews ~hh. those likdy to ~aye 
-~ .. ' • • • ' • • • > 

th~ nominee, ;including, ~here pertinent; fede~11l a~d state judges; ··p~aQticing l~wyers iri · 
- . , '. •' . . ' ' ' ' '· . , ~ ·. . .. ' . . ' - . ·. ' 

both ~rivate an~f goverr1ment service, legal servi.ces a~d publk' interest lawyers, 
' . . . . . . . \ • ' , ' ~, ' ' . ; • '1'· \ -~ ' . "·J ''' 

rep~esentatives of professional legal organizations, and Others who are in a positio.trto 
-' . .· .. . ' .. 

e'valuate the' noihinee's professiOnal qualification~. This process pro~ides {uritque "p~er- · ·' 

review"'aspect to our investigation. 

Interviews ·are conducted under an assurance .. of confidentiality. If .information 

adverse to the nomif1ee .is uncovered, th~ inve;tigat6r will advise the :nominee of such 

·.·.·~. 
"~·/.·. 

. information if he or .she can. do so with6ut breaching the promise of yonfidentiafity.: .• · 

During the.·personal interview wi~h the.,no111inee,the·nomi~ee is.given a full opportunit)I , 
. '• . .. . . . '" .. ' ._.,. '. -·. . ;.. .. ·. 

to rebut the adverse information and prdvide any additional .information bearing on it ... If 
'"··" . ,. . ' . ' ,. .· ' ' ' '• . . ... 

the noroiriee does not have the opportunity to 'rebut certain adverse information beca,use it 

canndt be disclosed without breathing conficlerifotlity,,the investigator.will rip( use. that 

informatio,n in"wri.ting the formaFreport and th.e ,Standing Co~mittee,"thyr~fore; ~ill rib!· .. 
~. ,' 

c.ohSider ~h.ose facts in its evaluatio11. 

Sometimes adear. pattern emerg~s during the intervie~s, al)d the investigation 

ca~ be briskly concluded. In 6the; case~, conflicti.ng ~valuatiOns·over s9me aspec;v of th~ 
• ! • • • ' I • • • ' • ". "' l ~ • 

· ·· norriin.ee's professional· qualifications ma~ aris~. In those instances, Jh~ investig~tor ta~es 
' o' ' '• '• ,' • •v ••• ; : '",; ;' '.·,··.. ·'• •"', 

.. whatever. a4dftional steps are necess~ry to reach a fair arid accurate ass~ssment ofthe . 
' ' . . . . . ' . 

',.: 

> ":', ·"''' 
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f10mmee . 

Upon completion of the investigation, the investigflfol'submits an infor~al,report 
' .. , ' ' ' . . . . .. . ' 

on the nominee to the Chair, who reviews 'it for thoroughness. Oncethe Chair determines 
' ' '" . . .. 

that the investigation is t~orough and complete, the)rivesti'gator then prepare~ the for.ma] 

· .. investigative report, containing ~ desctiption of the candidate's background, ~ummaries 

.of all intervi.ews conducted (inchicllng the interview witfthenbminee) anc,J an·eyalJation 

· bf the .candidate's. professional qualifications~ . This f~rinal report, together with t.he 
' ' .. ·'··' . 

public portion of the noinihee's 0ompletedSenate Judiciary Committee questi01:u1aire and . . ' . . . . .. , . . ,~ 

copies of any other relevant materials, i's drculated to"fhe entire ~omlpitfoe; c01nposed,of 
, •. '" . ' 

·.fourteen .:'circuif' members and th'~ Chair. Aft~r c~re(u]ly cortsideringthe' fo~mal report 
".' '• . . ' . ~ '. . . ,, . ' 

. and itsaH11ch111ents, e.ach member ind~pendentJy. submits his or her v.()te fo the Ch~ir,, 
' .. •. .. . . .. ;·-'' . . ' .\ • ,· . ', ..... • .) •. _!· ... ,,.,· '.,, •. ; 

rati.I1gthe nominee "Well Qtmlified,"··'1Qua.lified" ()r "NotQualified." ~n.investigator who 

. is not a current member,()f the Standing C~mmittee would notvote. 

·· J ·would like to 're~empiiasiz~ that ~n important fQn~e~n ot'tb,e q6rrim.ittee i~ 
. ; .. ' ,. : ' ' . -~., . 

carrying out its function is conflderitiality. The Committee seel5,s information on a 

cortpdential b<lsis and assures its. sources that their identities :and·,,the inforrriatiori they · · 

prqvide·.wiH notb~ revealed ~utside of the.Committee,. unless they co~:sertftb disclosure 

orthe i.Hformation is iso welf known in the community t]lat it ha~.been repeated to the 
. ' . . .. -. . '.,' . .· ... 

"'.. 
' . - . . . i ":· '~ . ' . . , 

Committee members by 'multiple sources.·. It is the Com111itt.ee's experience ~hat only ~Y 

assuring and rriaintain.ing such.confidentiality.can sources bepersuaded to provide Juii .. ·. 
• ' ' - • • . • - • ; ) • . ,· ' . ' '· .; . .. ': "". . • '.' ' • j ' . ' : : . . • ' ..., ;'. ,'. ' • . ~ ~- > ' : • • ' 

· arid ca'nd id information. How~ver, · we are also alert to the p8tentiaL for ·abuse Of 
', ,' . ·'· .. . . - ·'· •'' ' .. ,· 

confidentiality, The substance of adverse i~formation issha~ed .whhthenon1inee,<v.bo. is 
. ' ' . .. . ' ' . ·- .. ' "· ... , ; ·. ,,~:. -· 

·f··- .;" 

given a fui~ opportunity to explain the matter and to provide. any additional Info~rnation 

.. ·"·'' 
•"I 

.. , .·' 

. ' _, .. ~ 

.l· 
·.,. 
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. bearing· on it "If the information cannot be. shar;ed with the nominee, it is not indµded i11 ¥ 
:. ). 

· theformal report arid is hot considered by th~· Committee. in reaching its· eval~~tiori:'. .· 
'·, . ' . ' .. - . ' ' ' ,. . ' - . 

•. 
. ,.. 

\ . 
: ~· .. 

. . ' . , -

..... ·, 
The Standing Committee has issuedthree evaluations'On.thenomination·ofB~~tt 

Kavanaugh. This.is·dueto the.factthat MnKahnaugh has 6eert nominatedorlce.(2003) 

and re-norpihated twice (2005 and :iOQ6). It is the 'est~blishedpracfice of th'¢ Standing .,, 
. ·. .< • ·. • : ' .- • : ' .:···. _,_ '.: 

Committee to coriduct a further investigation 6~ any n~ri)inee who is re~n~minate.~, and · 
" - • ·.; ,1, 

the ~xtent and. scope of that further investigation. i's often; influenced by the IefigtJ{.oftime .. 
•';·· ,, ·1. 

. that .. has passed from the . date of the original. evaluation ·and ratjri,g. Whenever a" · 
';: ·( -

• · supplemental: evaluation is perforn;ied, ·copies of all previous confidential for.ma! repo1;ts 
' .--. • '• ••I''' ·. .' , I' ' ' ,' • ", '. ' 

oh the . nominee are repr~dyced, and presented to eV~ry iTI~mber 6t the' Standing 
, . '., . .·· . ' - . ' ;'.'' 

., 1,. 

. Cotntnittee .·for revjew before they vote;.· alongside the new formal report, Thus,·~. it is ·; 
'. • • ' • '. " • ' ' • '. • • • • ' ' - • t ~ • • • ' .. ' • • • : ·' • - '. ' : • • • : -

occurred here~ 

· Concem'has .been raised thc,tt themcistrecent rating from theSt~ncling·Comf11itt~e·; ·· 

~omehdw.result~tsolelyfr6m a "chang~ in :personnel" on the Committee.In fact, ~~C,n is 

iiotth~ case.,~ndeed, no less than six fI1e;berswho·setved'o~ the.St~nding c6mfuittee,, 
• I ' -~· 

. · .. :~ 

before 'Augu~t, 2005,2 and who continue tus~r\le tod~y; chahg~d th~ir votes: ~n this ·. 

•, nomi~ee fror!l.;'\Vell Qualified'.' to "Qualifle~:· between the,ratingissded 6n~ebr~ary {6~ 
.· .. : .·. .··. ,· 

. '"-

2 Appoi,~ttnerits tothe 1Standing Commi~ee ~r~ made by the incoming ABA Pr~side~~. and ~ccmdi~g to the · 
. . ' AJ3.A Constitution, ali ri.ew appointments to this committee begin their service at the C\:mClu?fon ofthe ABA . 

Annuai Meeting, which .is generally in Aug~st of each year; · · · · ·:< · 

"\ \. · . 

··. ·' 

· .. \·. ,; 

•'· ... , 
, ,I~ 

·: <,'. 
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200S;; and the rating is~ued Aprl13, 2006:, 
·;· 

_Th~re a~e ~t. lea.st ·three gt:neral reasons to suppqrt the. m6st'r~cent i;ating g'iv.e~ .; ~0 
' • • .;. .., •• • • n'• • ' ~\; • • • .,; • , • ' • .: ·" '"'.::' • " "· ··' • .' •• ' • • • • 

, .this nominee. First, the.re was a ~id~r universe of individuals conta~t~d 'dufang the 
. I -~ ,· , . , , •· . ; .... , 

•·.•-.supplemental evaluation,;than-.duringthe initial formal rep9~ or its update. Th_e,Standing ;. 
·-,·~--·" ' .... .:·.".-· .>,,, '·'· 

'COJTl,rillttee generally requires, at a minimum, 40 fo ,60 contac:ts wit,h jud:gt;s, lawyers and 

others, in ~nynqmination it is reviewing, although an. evaluator is ,certaif.ily .-free Jo cfo 

· m6re.In 2003 there w~r~· 55 sllch co_ntacts regardi~g Mr. Kavanaugh. In 2o06, ~here ~~re 
".' I' .'' ,. j. . .. ' ' '. '":·:, ' ;'.· :!' ' _ , ' . ,': ' ' . . . - ', . ' -.: . ... , <•/· (, " .. ' I, • '''.'-:,.' · .. ' 

9J ,such contacts. Nineteen more judges and seventee.n more la»')'e~s With ·potential. 
' - ' . -·, . . .· .. ' ' . . . ' ' 

were surr:imarily repeated .. Thus, in 2006 alarg~r group of individuals· was given the 
'\ .. 

opportunit)'>to.share wjththe Stat1ding Qommittee'knowJedge of the nomihee:~,sjitte,gdty, _ 
.·' ·'· " ' 

professional 9~mpetence, and potential forjµdiciartempernmerlt. 

; Seco-nd, some indjv id Lials who may have had ho coritact,with. the nominee _in) 003 
' .~··.·.~::-- · .. ,:·,·· . ,'"'·. ."! ·","''' >: ' ' ' • ·' .. .··.I ... :•::. , · ... , ... ,\i ·,,•:• ,i .. :~·:: '.(' 

were now.individirnls ~ho had crossed paths with.him .. S6me inpublic ieryic~or.in,the 
' , ., ,' " I '· • •: • , '". •' ' ' , • ··, ' .... •• ' ' 

practice of J~~ i~ 2001 were now no. t6nger. active; naving ·been: replaced ; in s6me • 
' . :.\.':- '· .. ;··.: 

';·l,,•'' I ·., '>' ... • •• 

. 0;measure .by .others.~An'd, simply put,·everits and tirri.es hadmqved on, cr¢ating new'alld · 
• .·.. ' ' •. ' . '. ,l, ,· :· . ·.,:,: •·••• ' 

.,different de~elopfuents and landscapes ih ~hiCh th:e. pfofossion~l qualifications 'of.the 
~· ', . 

nominee ,could, be \iiewe<l;; thatwete ·~ot pres'enqn·:200J or even2005. ·. 
::·· . ·. ..,.,, · ... \ ·, :·,.-. : ' ·:· . ' .;, '' 

Thfrd, it shouid\mpointed oiitthat with both ~artier tatings i§~ued by the: St~nding; 

.·.·Committee; there was· a ''mln9rity.Qualifed",aspart'ofthe·vote,Theofficialratin:~ by the 

Standing Commi~ee has alway~ bee~ ~ndremai~s the majority r~tfog, -ye,t~qnetheless it 
' ' • ' ' • - • ' • • • ' : ' ' ' ~ • < : ; ,'' .; : ." : 'J \• ·: ';. ; • ' 

· is importanJ to ,underscore that som5! metnbers of the 2003 ~~d 2005 Staµc;JjrlgCommittee , ,·· 
'.· '; ' .'·. ' . ',' .. ' , . ' ·' . :._,. <::.' ' 

considered this nominee to be "Qualifi~d.'' (' 

,•! < 
"/ 

"'! 

··<), ,. 
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.' ;h~ Standing Committee takes most sefio~sly: its;re~ponsibility to ,conduct an 

independent, non~pOlitical, non-ideolbgicaJ examinatibnofthe pfofessiof}aiqu.<llificatiohs · 

of judicial.nominees~ . There ·is no bright~line litrrnis test. as.to whether a nominee is .'"Well ·. · 
' '. • • ' '· • I • •' ' ' : • .\ ' • • • • • ', ·. .'. ' ' '- • '· 

Qualified'':cir,"Qualified'."· Th~ BackgrJunder'mak~s 'clear•·that "(t)o inerita rating {)f 

'Well~Qualified/ the nominee iriust be atthe top 'of the.legal prqfessiori in his or herlegal . 
't .. 

. , · ~omrriunity;. have ·outstanding. legal ability,· 'breadth' of expe~ienc.e' and th.e highest 
' . - ' ~ ; '. 

reputation. ·for integrity; and ·either ~emo~st;~te: or exhi.9it . the cap~city · fo( juditial. 
'·-~;~"": 

· .. ·temperament'' 
- .', ' ........ •' 

.·. 
'. 

The Bacf<gro~nderalso makes cl~ar that "(t)he rating of'Qualified' mean's that the 
·.:·,.,' 

no~ine~ m~e.ts the Co111mihee's very high stand~~ds with respect tq,. irtiegrifyi . · ... 

" .·-.". .· i_ .. .. ! ,' . -·.··''''. .. · .. '·:\ .' •·• .. '·.:' • . :·:' - '... . -."·' 

'pr6fessional6ompetence and judiCial teiripe'rarrietl,t and· th<lt the' ~omrri,itt~e, believes thiit' 

.. :·the nominee will be .able :to ,perform sati~factoflly 'afr of the\Juti~~ a9d ;respo~~ibHities '· · 
. . . " '· . ' - . . ' . . 

I._:.: 

... .r,equ:ired by .the high office ofafe'der~ljudge. •. :l.' 

kis; at its ~~st basic, the diffe~en~e b¢hvee~ th~ ~'highest standard" and;a "very,,' 
~ ''· . . ..,: ' -1(. ; ,!_ " "' .· : ~- , : : ' , '' '; ' • "- ' -" ·. '• ~ . ., . . .. ! • 

. · high s~aJdard." Our rating is not the result o'f tallyil1g ~he,c()mmevt~ .- ,pro rind con - about 

. a, particular nomiri~e; Nor is it a8~µi p~iitics. or ideol~gy 0r,.,empiricaLqata; . Rather;in 
r • 'r 

··. ~aki~g·b~~· evalaatiOn, we draw upon ~~ir···p~evio~s exper'iencb,'the Information ·an,9 

·· kri~wledge we gai'n about, the ·nominee·.dudnithe'cours6 of our inVestig~tion,<and our 

independ~rit judgment.., . ' ' •' 

'. ,, 
"; 

From the outset .in 2003, even with an earlier rating oC"WeI(Qualifi~d" for this. 
",/ ,-· ,• '..,• ;'-", ". ! ', ",' ',. ;,·:· ':\"; ;·•"'I .' '•.·._(v,,· .\, < ,'-<, 

n'o~i~ee, there were considerations arising from confidentia:t interviews . arid .~ther 
._ , ': ~: ·::-- .': " , I· . ; . '· "., . . '. ._· :,:: • ' . > • •., .. , •. ".' • 

0

1 '.,'_' ! _'. '.· ·:.' ',· ' ,.:. ; - .. ' ; ._i, .' ! " 

bac~ground infor~ation that act to explain the thread .. of·''.Qualifiedf; runhing through the 
., ! 

Sta~ding ~om.01iFtee. evaluations. The2063 ~otjfidenii(ll record ,makes it c)ear th(ltth,er~' 

·\. : . 

: ,. -~ 

. 11' 
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were then-present concerns regarding this nominee'$ breadth of.professional exp~rie11ce. 
'·· • ' • • • '.• ' ' . - l 

· It \Vis noted· that he had never tri.ed ~· case to . .verdict' or judgment; that his. litig;ticm . 
- . l· . .·- ·. ' . . 

. ' i - . . 
experience over the years was always in.the compariyof senior counsel; and thath~ had 

. - . . . - : . ~ l. - ' ' .. '• . ' .: i 

. very little experience ~ith criminal cases. Indeed, it is.th~·circumstaric'e ofcqurtroom . 

e)(perience that fills the transcripts that make the record before th6 Court of Appeals,, arid 
··-, - . . . . . .· ... · . ·. ,., 

concerns were ex;pressecl about the 'nominee'·s insight iritO that. very process. Nonetheless; 
. • ' ·' ' ' ' •' .•. ' ·'.I . ··, .'' 

~· . . ' 

a ·substantial maj()rity saw· other overrid,ing factors that supported a r~ti.~g o{ "We'll 
.:•. 

Qualified." 

The additional· rriterviews ·conducted in 2006 expanded' upori th~se .earlier 
"1\" 

.·. ·.·· · concerns. One judge who witnessed t.he nomine.e' s oral presentatfon .in c6urtcorrirpe11ted · .· 
' , . •· -: ' . : . - - . ~ . . . . •\" 

"·.·, 

that the nominee was "less than adequate" b~fore the court, h~d been "sanctimonious,'; 

and demonstrated "experience. on the iev.e! of a:11 associate.'\ A. lawyer ~ho had observed. 
-.;·· . . . . - . '-· '. 

' ' 

hlm during a dlfJerent court ptoceeding stated: "!vi'r. Kavanaugh did not handle the case 

· .. , well . as an advocat~. and dis.se~bled.'' · Other lawyers expressed similar conc¢rns, 
, ... 

repeating in substaµce thatthe nomiµee was yot.mg· andjnexperiencyd in the practice of . 

Jaw. 

.Further, the 2006 inter~iews raised. a new concern · i~vol~i!lg his pote!1tlal fot 

judicial temp~erament. Unlike. the e~rlier 20~3 fihat rei:;qrt and 2005 updated repo~t, ·th{ · 

re2ent supplemental evalu~tion cont~ined cornments from several interview~e-~ witb rn9re , .•... · 
·:,: .... 

'' ' . ·, ·, i:ecent experience with the nominee, which caused them to characterize the nominee as ' 

. "i~sulat~d." On~· interviewee "suggested, thjt 

0

:uch of hisconct;rn about .the l}o~inet:: 
' . ' 

being. in.sulated was due, underst~ndably, to ~he nomin~~'s current. po?ition as Staf( 

·Secretary to the Presid~nt. .. However,. this interviewee . remained cbncerned about the 
...... ,·: 

,';:, 

' . _ :.~ . . 

; .·. 
:'. ,.,, 

·" .. , 



·":·. 

9 

J r{ominee 1'~ abiiity to be balanced. and fair should he a~S\Jine ~.'federal judg~ship. And 
. . .· ' . ... . .' ·. . . . . . 

_;· ... 

. another interviewee echoed essentially the same thoughts: "(He is) immovab'le anci vefy « '. . . . . '•, . . .. ·. ' 

stubborn ;md frustrati~g to deal with on sorrie issµes." Both issues~his ptofessi9nal .. ,:. . ·. ··, . . . ,-

experience and the. qu~stion. of his tre~d6m from bias and open-mindedness , 'Yere, 

br(}ug;htup (afong with'others) with th~ nominee 'during h,is 2006 interview: ~ndhe \\'as .•. 

pro'yided 'a full ?pportµnity to ad1res.~, theiri:in detail. as: part. o( our·,suppJelllent~l. 
·1.:. ;.11 

evaluation. material. 

' ·- ' . 

This nominee enjoys a solid reputation for integrity, intellec.foal 'cap::tcity, and .· 

)~rJti~g mid analytical ability. The concern has beei:i ,and r~itiains focu·sed on the breadtp · .. 

. o(his pr9fes~ional experie~ce, ::tnd the most recent stipplem.eJ'\tal evaluatioir'has ~hhan,ced. · 
' ' . ._ .• ,·. - . ·! •· • ·, ., •. ·, . .: . ,,. • 

... that concern. When taken in combinatiori with the additional concern 'over whether. this •' 
' . . .. ;.. . ' . . . .. ., ' . . . . ·' ·. . ,. :·· ... ~. - . . ' . 

. ".".: '.''.,, '· ,.• 

·nominee· is·. so insulated 'that· he will be. unable:t~ judge fairly in the >fuiu~e, and placed . _., . ' . . ... · ... . ' . ' . . . . . ' 

·alongside ·the consistently praise\Vorthy statements' ·about the nominee· in · m~J1Y 0th.er 

'~rea~ the.; 2606 rating .can be ·seen in context'. A ·suh~tantial. fu,aj~ritY,; of th~ ;.sta~dihg . ·· 

Committ~e believes that Mr. Kavanaugh i~ indeed qualified to se.rve .. on th~fede~::t.J bench, 

·Thank yo':! for the rather unique opportunity to present these rem.arks.· 
·\.· .. 

- ;-,;· 

. :~-- . ;· 

'-'.' 

·.·.·:" 
·.·-' 

.. \' 
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Mikva: Abner Joseph .(1979-1994) 

Edwards, Harry Thomas ( 1980-present) 

Ginsburg, Ruth Bader (1980-1993) 

Bork, Robert Heron (1982~1988) · 

Scalia, Antonin ( 1982-1986) 

Starr,Kerineth Winston (1983-1989) 

.Silberman, Laurence Hirsch (1985,present) 

Buckley, James Lane (1985-present) 

Williams, Stephen Fain (1986~present) 
Ginsburg, Douglas Howard (1986-present) 

Sentelle, David Bryan ( 1987-present) 

Thomas, Clarence (1990-1991) 

Henderson, Karert LeCraft ( 1990"present) 

Randolph, Arthur Raymdnd (1990-present) 

Rogers, Judith Al1n Wilson (1994-present) 

TateL David S. (1994-present) · 

Garland, Merrick B. (1997-present) 

Roberts, John Glover Jr.(2003-2005) · 

Brown, Janice Rogers (2005~preseni) 
Griffith, Thomas Beall (2005-present) 

·,.-1 

Rating1 

WQ 

WQ 
WQ2 

EWQ 

EWQ 

Q/WQ 
Q/NQ3 

Qi'NQ 
Q!NQ 
Q/NQ4 

Q 

WQ/Q 

Q 
WQ 

Q (sm) I WQ (min) 

WQ 

WQ 

WQ 

WQ 

Q (m) I NQ (min) 

Q (m) I NQ (min) 

1 The ABA ratings do not appeai: to be available online prior to the 1.01 '1 Congress. These ratings have 
been drawn from publicly-available sources such as news and journal articles and conffrmed using OLP 
internal sources where a'vailable. . . · . .· . ' 

·
2 Some sources indicate tha:t Judge Edwardsreceived a mixed WQ/Q rating. However, the ietter from the 
ABA stated WQ(sm)/EWQ(min) . 

. 3 Some sources indicate that Judge Starr re~eived a mixed Q/NQ rating. OLP sources indicate thathe 
received at least a substantial majority Q rating. · 
4 OLP could not confirm this rating through its internal sources. 



TELECONFERENCE: 

PRESENTATION OF AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION'S 

EVALUATION OF BR:E;TT KAVANAUGH, 

NOMINEE TO BE A CIRCUIT JUDGE ON THE 

UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA CIRCUIT 

MONDAY, MAY 8, 2006 

United ~taf~s Senat~; 

Committee on the Judiciary;. 

Washington, D .C, , 

The Conference Call began at 2:05 p.m. in Room.SD~~4D;. 

·Dirksen Senate Office Building. 

Mr. Jensen. For Chairm~n Spectet's office, we have 
~ . ' . 

Peter Jensen, Greg Nunziata, Michael. Thorpe, Frank Scaturro. 

and ~anny Fisher. And if staff could go thro,ugh .quickly 

and say ~ho'~ on ~he call. 

Senator Schumer.. Hello; this .is ·chuck Sc,humE:;r. I 

just got on the call, Senator Schumer. 

Mr. Jensen. Hello, Senator Schumer. This is Pet~r 

Jensen with Ch.airman Specter. We '.re just goin.g through and 

doing a coupl~ housekeeping items. There is a court 

reporter here. We are going to keep a transcript or a 

.transcript will be made that hopefully_ will be available 

~ater this afternoon--



\ 

Senator Schu~~r. Okay. 

Mr. Jensen. ·~--for Members. The Chairman has said 

that written questions-~ 

Senator Schumer. Yes, I am at an airport, and those 

are some F-16s. Sorry.· 

[Laughter.] 

$enator Sthumer. Syracuse Hancock; it's both a, 

commercial airport .and a' military. 

Mr. Jensen. Members w_il 1 be al lowed to S,.cubmit writ ten 

questions to the ABA. The Chairman will not delay the vote 

if those questions are not submitted: He announ6ed at the 

l~st markup that he inte~ds to vote on ihe nomin~tlon this 

Thursday. That's still the plan. And Mike O'Neill is 

joining us a~ well. He 
1
just walked in; Dust going through 

a couple of housekeeping items, and Senator s6humer is on 

the call as well. 

Mr, O'Neill. Hi, Senator Schumer. 

Senator Schumer .. To make it' clear, t'here has been no 

agreement that there will be a vote on Thursday, and we·· 
I 

don't know what kind of questions we'll have until after 

the hearing. •", 

Mr. Jensen. Right, well, the Chairman announced that-

-one other thing: .please state who is ~peaking for the 

I 
benefit of the court reporter before you say anything. 

Senator Schumer. Right. 



Mr. Jensen. Th~ Chairman did announce that he intends 

to hold the vote. I guess that's something that will be 

worked out later, but just so you know, individual Members 

can submit written ~uestions to the· ABA, but his intent is 

not ~o delay the vote until those questions are answered .. 

Mr. Meyer: Hey, Pete, this is John Meyer. Can I make 

a quick suggestion, which is that my understanding is that 

Senator Schumer's time is limited before he has to get on 

the flight, so why don't we go straight to that, and then, 

we can go through sort of the roll cal.I of who's on after 

he leaves and before staff~-

Senator Schumer. That would be very helpful. Are 

there any of my colleagues on the line? I. don It want 'to:- -
\ 

Mr. Flug: No, as far as we know, the hearing has not 
I, . 

been called to order as a formal hearing. This see~s to be 

some form of informal conference call among staff. 

Senator Schumer. No, no, I just wanted to make sure. 

Mr. O'Neill. Althou9h there is a transcript being 

made.· This is Mike O'Neill being made of this.; 

Mr.· Flug. That doesn't make it a hearing; 

Mr. O'Neill. So it is on the record. 

Senator Schumer. Right,·. 

Mr. Tober. This is Steve Tober.. I spcike, and I 

understood, that this was goitig to b~ a hearing b~ phone 

with a transcript. And I turned down the oppo~tunityto 



simply have an}.nformal chat of an investigative nature'· 

given the role that this Committee plays in this important 

process. If this is not within the parameters of what I 

thought thi.s was going to be, then, this is not something 

that, you know, necessarily we are going to proceed with. 

I was under the full impression that every Senator 

would be given the opportunity to be pres.ent by phone for a--:· 

hearing. 

Mr. 0 'Neill. That is correct, Steve.• Every Senator 

w~s given the opportunity to be pres~nt by phone, artd we 

are taking an official Comrnittee transcript of the phone. 

call. 

Mr. Jensen. Which will be made apart of the record. 

Senator Schumer. This is Senator Schumer. I think 

that is what everybody envisioned. There will be a 

transcript. ·Everybody can ask questions, and the. 

transcript will be made available this afternoon. 

Mr. Tober. Okay; we~l, on that basis,. I am willing to 

proceed. 

Senator Schumer. Great. No, no, no, this is not 

informal. I expect everythirtg will be recorded and.made 

:public. 

Mr. Tober. And if I may, Pete, with your ind~lgence, 

let me proceed, because I don't want the SeQator tb leave 
( 

us from the airport'.. 



.'.,: 

Mr. Jensen. Let us go 'ahead and get started with 

Steve. I believe he has some remarks. 

Senator Schumer. Then let me--go ahead . 
. - _, 

. Mr. Tober: Thank you, Senator . Steve Tober speaking-~ 

' . 
And before I begin my remarks, I would like to request.·.· 

of somebody, I guess Pete 6r whomever, that the wri~ten 

statement that we previously submitted to. you and to 

Senitor Leahy's office earlier toda~ be; made pa~t of this 

record and that its,availa:~ility on our Website, which will 

be this afternoon, will be made known'during .the.public 

h---"'e_.a_r~_ i_· n_· ""'g'-. _t_o_m_o_r_r_o_· _w_. __ s_o that is our opening .re.quest . 

And w.i th that, let me make the following r.emarks .. • 
-' ·1. ' ., ' 

Mr. 0 'Neill. That is fine. We will do that, Steve.· 

Mr. Tober. Thank you. The Standing Committee has 

iss~ed three evaluatiohs--

Mr. Flug. Excuse me for. one minute, because I'm still 

concerned about the rtature of this· proceedin~'. Was. thi~ 

publicly announced? 

Mr. O'Neill. Yes, this was publicly announcect,·a:nd 

yes, sitting right behind m~,~ Jim, is aicourt ~eporter' 

transcribing everything. 

Mr. Jensen. And, Jim, this is consistent with what.· 

was done for the Greg Van Tatenhove nomina,tion in November 
. . 

of last year, in which we held thls telecoriferehce d~ facto 

hearing in which we kept a transcript like we're doing now 



I ----

which was later made ~ part of the hearing record. 

Mr. Parip. This is Jeremy Paris from Senator Leahy's 

office. I ju~t ~ah~ to interpose that that was m~ant ~o be 
- ' 

an-exception to the general rule meant to accommodate the 

schedules--we were gettihg out of session--~nd particularly 

the.reque~t of Senator McConnell, who was close to the 

nominee. And we, you know, we think that a return to the 

typical practice would pe better. -

I'll defer to the Senators who are on the call. 

Senator Sessions. ·Let me join on, that. The Van 

Tatenhove matter was somethihg to.. which we accommo?ated the 

end of the session need but was not something we wish to 

engage in as a regular practice. ~he reason that· I have 

·. 
bee~ willing ~o do this today is· that this is not a npt 

qualified finding, _an:d should it ever be a not qualified 

fiJ1;ding, we would obviously hope.and expect to be called to 

testify before the Committee. Should I prC?ceed? 

Mr. Jensen. Yes. 

M:t. Flug. I would like _to know that we have some 

att~ndings who are not part of the. staff. Are the White 

House and theJustice Department and. the press on this 

call? 

Mr. Jensen. I don't know about the press. 

Mr. 0 'N_eill. I mean, I don't know. 

Mr. Jensen. -It was.:..-the call- inf orrriat ion was 



circulated via the Committee's d,'istribution list, and I 

believe there ~re Department of Justice and White Hduse 

members on that., 

Mr. Flug. And the press list got it, too? 

Mr. Jefisen. I don't believe so~ but this will be a . 

public transcript that's made available to the record; made 

available to the public so~-
. . . 

Mr, Flug. i. don't think it can be ·a hearing' .{f it is 
:, . ' 

not publicly announced and 'the public allowed to attend. 

Mr. O'Neill. We under~tand th~t, Jim. But the 

hearing {s on the record, and the ~ranscript will be made 

available to everyone. 

Mr. Jensen. bkay; s6, Steve, please proceea. 

Mr. Tober. I will. Let me say ~gain, I think, hello 

'to Senator Sessions and Senator Schumer. You both on line? 

Senator Schumer. Yes. 

Senat6r Sessions. I ·am, Jeff Sessions; 

Mr. Tober. Hi there, sir. 

Let me go back and start over. The Standing .. Co~mittee 

has issued three evaluations 9n the no~ination o~ Brett 

Kavan~ugh. This is due to the fact that Mr. Kavanaugh has 

been nominated once and ienominated twice~ It is tbe 

established practice of the Standing Committee to conduct a 

further investigation on any nominee who is renominated, 

and the extent and the scope of that further investigation· 



; _:, 

~s often influenced by the length of time that has passed 

from the date of the original evaluation and rat~ng. 

Whenever a supplemental evaluation is performed, 

copies of all previous confid~ntial formal reports Dn the~ 

nominee are reproduced and are presented to every member of 

the, Standing Committee for review before they vote, 

along.side the new formal report. Thus, it is important 

that every supplemental·. ev.al uation ·performed goes back to 

the end date of the original formal report and brings the 

investigation forward fr.om that point. And that is what 

has, occurred here. 

Concern has· been raised that the most recent' rating' 

from the Standing.Committee somehow results.solely from a 

·change in personnel on the Committee. In fact, that is pot 

the case. Indeed, no less than six members who served on 

the Standing Committee in 2005 and who continue to serve 

today changed their votei on this hominee from weil 

qualified to qualified between the rating issue~ on 

February 16, 2005, and the rating issued on April 3, 2006,. 
. . 

There are at least three general ·r,easons to support 

the most recent rating given to this nominee. 
. ) 

First, there 

is a.wider universe of individuals contaqted during the 

r 

supplemental evaluation than during. the initial formal 

report·or its update~ The Standing Committee generally 

requires at a minimum 40 to 60 contacts with,judges, 



,/ 

lawyers, and others, in any nomination it is reviewing, 

al thoug,h an evaluator is certainly free to do more. 

In 2003, there were 55 ~~;uch contacts regarding Mr. 

Kavanaugh. In 2006, there were 91 such contacts~ 19 more 

jud~es and 17 more lawyers with pStential knowled~e about 

Mr. Kavanaugh were contacted, ~nd not.all of the original 

55_ contacts were summarily repeated. Thus; in 2006, a 

I lar_ger group of individuals was given the opportunity to 

share with the Standing Committee knowledge of the 

nominee's integrity, professional competence, and potential 

for judicial temperament. 

Second, some individual~ who may have had no contact 

with the nominee in 2 003. are now indi viduais who had·· 0 

crossed paths with him. Some in public se~vice or in the 

practice of law in 2003 we:t:"e now no longer active, having 

been replaced in some measure by. others, .arid simply put, 
: ,, -

events and times had moved on; creating new a~d different 

developments and landscapes _in whith the prof~ssional 

qualifications for the nominee could be viewed that were 

.not p~esent in 2003 or even 2005. 

Third, it should be pointed out that with both earlier 

ratings .issued by the Standing Committee, the.re was a .. 

minority qualified as part of th~ vote. The official 

rating by the Standard Committee has always been arid 

remains the majority rating. Yet, nonetheless, jt is 

\ 



important to underscore that some members of the 2003 and 

2005 Standing Committee considered this nominee to be 

g:ual~fied. 

The Standing Committee takes most--

Senator Schumer. Mr. Tober? 

Mr. Tober. Yes. 

Senatoi Schumer~ It's Senator Schumer. 

Mr. Tober. Yes. 

Senator Schumer. I have a few quick questions. You 
. . 

know, I have to get on my plane to come to Washirigton. 

Mr. Tober. Go right ahead, sir. I'll be happy--

Senator Schumer.; Co0ld I do those? I mean, we all 
I. 

have the--I know you'r~ reading it, and I'm glad you are. 

But could I just ask a fe.w quick questions? Would that be 
'· 

all right with everybody, not only on behalf of myself but 

.some qf rr:tY colleagu~s, okay? !'.. 

Mr. Tbber. Go right ahead, Senator. 

Senator Schumer. Great; okay. 

· First, this is to Mr. Tober and any of the others. I 

am correct in assuming you have no objection to appea~ing 
. . 

before the Committee tomorrow at 2:00. 

Mr: Tober.· I have no objection. We thought this· 

would resolve the need to do so. 

Senator Schumer. But. all things being equal, would .it 

not be better to proceed in the conventional fashion and 



have live .testimony so people could. ask you questions'? 

Mr. Tober. Senator, if it is the.will of th~ $~nate 

Judiciary Committee to have me present along with Ms. 

Tucker and Mr. Payton and anybody else, we will certainly 

do whatever we can to make arrapgements,. 
. . ' ... 

-~enator Schumer. Well, j:hat ~as the view of'' the 

minority, and ·.it was scotched. Aµd the, ·only reason I. can 

think of is, again, some.do not.wa:ht tl)is report to be' made 

as public' and you to answer questions as fully as ym1,,do, 

',· 

and I just officially am renewing the request that you be 

allowed to appear. We don't have to have a debate on that 

right now, but I think that would be right . 
. . . ; , ~· 

So let me go on to piY third question. How unusup.l is 

it for the ABA to downg+ade its rating? .Do you know how 

many times it has happened and how many times for.a: circuit 

·Court nominee? 
' ' 

M~. Tober. We have reevaluated renominations on a:· few' 

occasion~. When you sa~ downgraded, we chang~d. our rating, 

.. _for example, ori Judge Payne; I a:m sure you are familiar 

0ith that circumstance. 

Senator Schumer. Yes.·• 

Mr. Tober. We did a reevaluation of Judge Ryan .. That 

did not change. It came out again as not qualified. We 

are presently in the proc:,ess of· doing .another one . 

. Historically, I would have to defer to t~e staff to give 



yo.u. the exact number, Senator. It is not an unus.ual thing.·• 

It is not something that is commonplace. 

Senator Schumer. R~ght: 

Mr. Tober.. But this isn't the first time it's 

happened. 

Senator Schumer.. Got it; okay. 

And the final question I had was thi~~ on May 3, 

there was an article in the Washington Post wher~ a White 

House spokesperson said the J?.BA's downgraded rating of the 

nomination, quote, resulted from changes in the ABAis 

panel Is personnel I not from new. findings.. Your statement I 

yoµr testimony states unequivocally this is not true; that 

at least six reviewers ch~nged their votes based on· new 

information. 

Do you have any reason to,khow why the White Hquse 

might have thought this was a personnel change? Cou.ld 

there have been a ~isunderstanding or something? 

Mr. Tobe~. Senator, I wouldn't dare speak for anybody 

. else,. never mind the White Hou.se. I can only .. speak for 

what I know, ·and what I know is that this rating that.was 

issued by this Committee .was .based on the substance of this 

information before this .Committe.e based on the. suppl~mental 

evaluation and the original Feport that was also provided. 

Senator Schumer. Right; I µnderstand that. All 

right; so, look, those are my--1 mean, I think the report 



spe.aks for itself, and I just want to thank all of you a't 

the ABA and my colleagues from Senator Specter's office .for 
; . 

arranging this. But I do belieye that what makes the 

greatest sense is to have Mr. ·Tober, Ms. ·Tucker, and the, 

others appear before us so that we can answer questiorfs; 

aria I do not see any reason on God's green earth why we· 

couldn't do that. 

Mr. Tober. Pete? 

Mr. Jensen. Yes. 

Mr. Tober. Let me go back to.- -

Mr. Jensen. Yes, why don't you go ahead and . finish. 

Mr. Tober. Okay. 

Senator Schumer; Okay; I am going to f?.igri'off, and I 

thank everybody, and I'll see everyone in Washingtori, God 

willing, in a.few hours. 

Mr. Tober.. Thank you,• Senator .. · 

Senator Schumer. Okay; great, bye. 

Mr. Tober: Senator $essions; I think I am reading f6r 

you now, sir. 

The Standing Committee takes ·mo~t seriously its 

responsibility to conduct .an independent, non~pol i tical, 

non-idE:;ologic<3_1 examination of t.he professional.· 

qualifications of judicial nominees. There.is no bri~ht 

line litmus test as to whether.a·nominee is well qua'.lified 

or qual.ified. The backg:i:;ounder carefully defines bdth 



ratings, and each. Committee member applies those 

definitions when they independently vote. It is, at its 

most basic, the difference .between the highest stan~ard and 

a very high standard. 

Our rating is .. not the result of tallying the comments 

pro and con about a particular.nominee, nor is it abo~t 

politics or ideology or empf:tical data; Rather; in making 

our evaluation, we draw upon our PFevious experiences, the 

information and knowledge we gain about the nominee during 

\. 
the course of our investigation, and our independent 

judgment; 

From the outset in 2003; even with an earlier rating 

of well qualified fo~ this nominee, the~e were 

consi.derations arising from confidential interviews and 

other background information that acttb explain the thread 

of qualified running through the Standing Committee 

evaluations . Tbe 2603 confidential record makes .ft ~lear 

. that there were then present concerns regarding the 

nominee's breadth of professional experiertce. It was noted 

back then that he had never tried a case to verdict or 

judgment; that his litigation experience over the years was 

always in th,e company of senior counsel; and that he had 

very little experience in ~riminal cases. 

Indeed, it is the circumstance of· courtroom experience 

that ,builds the trahscripts that make the record before the 



court of appeals, and concerns were expressed about th.e 

.nominee's insight into that very process~ ·Nonetheless, a 

' substantial majority saw other overriding factois that 

supported a rating of well qualified. 

The additional interviews conducted in 200£ expanded 

upon thos~ earlier concerns: One judge, who witnessed a 

nominee's oral presentation in court, commented that the 
~ .. , 

nomin~e was~ quote, less than adequate before the cou~t and 

had been, quote, sanctimon~ous, and demonst~ated, tjuote, 

experience on the level of an associate . The lawyer, who 

. had observed him duririg a differ~nt court proceeding, 
.· ·. \ . . . '• . ··.· 

stated, ;quote, Mr. Kav1naugh did not handle the case well 

as an advocate and dissembled . O~her lawyeis.expre~sed 

. similar concerns, repeating in substance that the nominee 

·was young and inexperienced in· the practice 2'£:.law. 

Further, the 2006 intervie~s-raised a new conce~n 
. . 

involving his potent:ial for judicial temperament. Unlike 

the earlier 2003 final report and 2dos updated report, the 

recent supplemental evaluation·containedcomments from 
. . . 

several interviewees with more recent exp·erience with the 

nomine~, which.caused them to characterize the riominee as, 

quote, insulated. One interviewee sug~ested that much of .. 

his concern about the nominee being insulated was dµe,' 

understandably, to the nominee's /current position as staff 

secretary to the Pre~ident. However, this interviewee 



remained concerned about the nominee's ability to be. 

balanced and faii should he assume a Federal judgeship. 

. . . 
And another interviewee echoed essentially the same 

thoughts, quote, he is immovable arid very stubborn and 

.frust~ating to deal with on some issues. 

Both issues, his professional experience, and the 

. question of his openmindedness, were brought up along with 

others ·with the nominee during his 2006 interview, and he· 

was provfded a full opportunity to address them in detail 

as.part of our supplementa1 evaluation material. 

This .nominee enjoys a solid reputation for integrity, 

intellectual capacity, and writing and analytiCal ability. 

~he concern has been and remains focused on th~ br~adth of 

his professional experience, and the most reCent 

1.suppTemental evaluation has enhanced that concern~ Taken 
I . 

in combination with the additional concern over whether 

this nominee is so insulated that he would be. unable to.·• 

~udge faiily in the f~ture and placed a~origsid~ the 

consistently praiseworthy statements about the nbminee·iri 

many .other areas, the 2006 rating can be seen J.n context. 
\. 

. . .. ' 

A substantial majority of the Standing Committee 

~elJ.eves that Mr. Kavanaugh is indeed qualified to serve on 

th~ Federal bench. Thank you for what is i~creasingly a 

rather unique oppqrtunity to.present these remarks. 

· Mr. Jensen. Thanks, Steve. 



I will turn ~t over~~is Senator Session~ still~with 

us? Senator? Okay; well, this is Pete Jensen. I will go 

ahead. I have a few questions that I: ~ould like. to .ask 

you, Steve. 

Mr. Tober.·· Sure'·· Pete. 
,';'·· 

Mr. Jensen. First, you ment.ioned that I think six 

votes had changed or six Committee members had changed 

their votes from well qualified to qualified. Did anyone 

on the· Committee chc:mge tlj.eir vote from qualitied to well 

qualified? 

Mr. Tober. Did anybody on the Committee from '05 to 

I 06 Change their vote from ,qualifi'ed to well gualifi~q? 

Mr .. Jensen. Yes~ 

Mr. Tober_. I am not sure of' .that answer f' Pet~, I 

would ·hav~ to go back and· look. T do not have that in 

· front of me. 

Mr. Jensen. You proyided a few negative quotes about 

Mr. Kavanaugh in your writ ten statement. .C:an you provide · ( 

some positive quotes? We want to make .sure that the 
. -

Commit tee does not' mi.sunderstand that everybody whom you 

'interviewed had derogatory things to say about Mr. 

Kavanaugh. 

Mr. Tober.- Let me underscot~, Pete, that we didnit 

find hini not qualified. · There's hot a brep.th. bf that :Ln 

this report or a~y earlier report. We found him 



.qualified/minority well qualified. What I said at the end· 

is what, in fact, mafiy peop~e s~id, that he has a sblid 

reputation for ifitegrity, intellectual capabity-~a 16t of 

people· refer to him as brilliant-.,-and an excellent writing, 

and analytical ability. Those are great skills to bring .to 

the court of appeals. There is just no q~estion about 

that. 

Mr. Jensen. Okay; and also, there has,been a lot of 

talk about how this is.--it is highly unu·si:ia1 to conduct a 

hearing in this manner. Along-the highly unusual strain, I. 

have one question, and that is to your kno~ledge has the 

Committee ever been brought in to testify for a lower court 

. . 
nominee that did not receive a not qualified rating? 

Mr. Tober. I believe, we did once. 

Mr., Jensen. For whom? 

Mr. Tober. I believe it .was on--l6wer court meaning 

anything below the Supreme· Court? 

Mr. Jen~en. Yes. 

Mr. Tober. I believe'we·came in on the nomination of 
/. 

Judge Wilkinson in about. 1984 to explain a qualified 

rating. 

'Mr. Jensen. Arid was that before 6r after the. 
. . 

nominat,ion had b~en report~d ,out of Committee? 

Mr. Tober_ . I don't.know the answer to that, Pete. 

. You'd~have .to tell me, I guess, wheri it was reported out 



------~-----------~-~~ --------------

and when we came in. I honestly don'~ know. 

Mr. Jensen. Okayi I believe it was after th~ 

nomination had been reported. Yes, that is correct~ 

Mr.•'Tober. It •may hav:e ·been. All I know is that we 

were asked to attend arid to-testify, to answer some 

que~tions regard~ng proc~ss, and iri fact, we did so. 

Mr. Jensen. Okay .. 

Ms. · Bresnahan. It was a prenomirtation process, too . 
.. 

This is Pam Bresnah~n. 

Mr. Jensen. Yes, hi, Pam. ' 

Ms: Bresnahan. Different prbcess. 
. . ' 

Mr. Jensen. I am sorry. What was the different 

process? 

Ms. Bresnahan. I, s~id it w~s prenominatibn for 

Wilkinson. You know, the ABA had ,gone through and vetted 

Judge Wilkinson prenomination. 

Mr. Jen~en. Rig~t. 

Ms. Bresnahan. Before this process was irt place. 

Mr. Jensen. I believe, and if ,you wo~ld not mind, 

Ste,ve, checking on that, whether it was before or· after it 

was reported out of Committee but als.o lettLng the 

Commit tee know what the circumstanc~s were· for the ABA 

comin~ iti to testify. 

Mr~. Tober~ I will. I'll ask one of the staff. folks 
/ 

t.o get.on th.at and get yoµ art answer, P~te. 
I 

( 

I 



Mr. Jensen. .That would· be great. Thanks, •. Steve. 

·staff, any other staff that have questions? 

Mr. Paris. Yes,. this is Jeremy Paris, counsel to 

,senator Leahy. 

Mr,.. Tober. Hi, Jeremy. 

Mr. Paris. Hi; how are you doing? 

Mr. Tober. Fine, thank you. 

Mr. Paris. I just want to ask a few :tollow-up 

q~estions. Do you have any reason to doubt the sincerityi 

credibility, or, judgment of the most recent.interviewees? 

Mr. Tober .• The people we spok~ with? 

Mr .. Paris. Yes. 

Mr. Tober. Norie. 

Mr: Paris. Okay; in evaluating Mr. Kavanaugh's 
. ~ , .. 

qualification for this nomination; .I assume t~e Standing 

Committee reviewed his work for the last six years in' the 

White.House. That's almost half his• legal.· career as 

associate White House Counsel and assistant .. and. staff 

secretary to the President. I want to know, how Q.id you 

evaluate Mr. Kavanaugh's work f6r six years in the White 

House? 

Mr. Tober. Wel<i, I will let Marna Tµcker address 

that, too, but let me preface it by saying that one of the 

things we recognize by the cburse of Mr. Kavan~ugh's 

exper~.ence in practice.· is the years he has served in rather 



~arified air, includin~ ~hat yob have just asked me abo~t. 

And that is one of the concerns embodied in the expressed 

statement about being insulated and ,the concern about that. 

The reason: that's important; let me pµt this in 

.. perspective: th~ reason it is important to know whether 

someone has been in~ulated in that sen~e of the word is 

that when you have~~our backgrohn~er requires that a 

) nominee to the court have a minimum of 12 years of 

practical ,experience in the practice of law. Wheh they do 

not have that, or .if they are on the cusp of .i, t, we then 

look to see what life experience they are having, so that 

they can brihg life experience to the bench~·, and they need· 

to be of a quality of life experience that will serve the 

American people well. 

That is one of .the areas that we ·rooked at. That was 

one of the concerns that was expressed by some of the 
\ . 

inter~iewees, that this ~as an ins~lating pla~e t6 be artd 

may not truly reflect upon a mar~ broadened sense of life 
~ ' ... 

. ~ . 

experience that one.is supposed to have of a person sitting 

on the Federal bench. 

Having said that, let me ask Marna Tuck~r tQ add any· 

additional comments she has in response to your question. 

Ms. Tucker. I would like to describe the process I ( 

followed in dealing with Mr. Kavanaugh's time, in his· 

vqrious positions in the White House. H~ was, as I recall, 

( 



first a deputy White House counsel; then a senior White 

Hottee counsel; then, finally, staff secretary. I· spoke to 

~any people, several.of hie superiors, others of his 

colleagues who worked in the same off ices, people in the 

Cabinet, and asked them the questions about his :)cegal 

competencE:, .his integrity, and his potential for judicial 

temp~rament. 

And they gave their different views on all of these. 

I particularly focused on whether or. not he was doing lE:gal 

work at the,. time and if they were able to comment on his 

legal work or qµasL-legal work. . That is what· I did\ 

Mr. Tober. Is that fully responsive? 

Mr. Paris. Yes; thank you .. The new interviews that 
, 

were conducted, orie of. them was fr6m a jud~e, another one 

was from a lawyer who had s,een Mr. Kavanaugh in court. My 

q~estion is, am I correct that the new concerns raised come 

from ~ number of different- interviewees based Ori. 

independent and separate observations? In other words, tan 
I 

you address one court appearance? Were there._ sev.E:ral court 

appearances? Can you provide a little bit more detail? 

.Mr. Tober. Well, I want to be sure that what you haye 

-in front of you is fully understood, and then, I will ask 

Marna to weigh in again; ·r belie~e what ~e s~id,was that 

we had comments from one.judge,· and then, we had a comment 

from a lawyer who saw the nominee in a different context, 



i~ a.~ifferent case, and then~ we. said there were other 

. cormnents from other lawyers that. had expressed. similar 

sentiment about his youth al).d relative inexperience. 

Having said that, that's whatwe tried to write in our 

written statement so that that' 1 s not taken out of. cont~xt. 

Marna, do you have more that you wish· to add to th.at? 

Ms. Tucker. Well, I will si:mply add that. the people I 
. . 

~ ' ' 

contacted were people whose names I received frorh the PDQ.· 

t~at the Senate had, that it listed lawyer~ on both sides 

of all. of his TI1aj or cases, people that Mr. Kavanaugh 

himself sent me. the names of I .and additional judges who had 

sat on cases that Mr. Kavanaugh was counsel in. ·so it .is 

important to note, I' contacted people who had relatively 

hands-on:experience ~ith this. 

And in terms of the criticism, my job was if there was 

a criticism, it was .to follow it throughan:d to find out 

whether the criticism was· ·warranted and a.Tso to ·give ·Mr. 

Kavanaugh a chance to respond.to that criticism, ""'.Pich I 

did. 

Mr. 'Paris. Thank you. walking back Just for a momerit 

to make sure I fully understood, I think it was Ms~ Tucker's 

answer t(J .the. previous question a.bout evaluating .. the six 

years in the White House. I believe you testified that you 

evaluated his legal and quasi~l~gal work. C~n yo0 describe 

what kind· of· legal· work he' did in the White House? 

,'.f. 



Ms. Tucker. His legal work ~as done primarily when he 

was in the Office bf White House Coun.sel ,> both· as a deputy 

. cotinsel and as the senior counsel. In terms of e~actly the 

legal work that he did,'much of it--T mean, I don't know. 

what he did. Much of it is privileged; in fact, almost.all 

of it is privileg~d. 

But in terms.of--I was interested in primarily asking 

people how well he did his job, how thoroughly he did his 

job, how fairly he did his job. And as to the specific 

issues, We did ask him about a few areas. We asked Mr. 

Kavanaugh about a few ar~as of concern we had of. specif i.cs·. 

But on the legal work, I can't tell you exactly what legal 

issues he did·when he wc;i.s in White House Counsel's office. 
. . ' . 

Mr. Paris. Thank you. I have no further questions, 

but I beiieve some of my colleagues do~ 

Mr .. Meyer. This is JOnathan Meyer for Senator Bi den. 

I just have a couple of quick questions. 

The first is, ·With regard to the issue of--yqu said 

· .. that no le.ss than six members who served on the Cammi ttee 

ahd continue to serve today changed their votes. How many 

membership slots have switched over .on the Gommittee from 

ihe 1irst review until now? Jn 6ther words, how many have 

been departed and replaced by someone else? 

Mr. Tober. In August of '05; we change our 

constituency, if you will, .on this Committee at the eI}d of 



~very annual meeting from the ABA, and' it runs fqr three 

years for most folks; one year, essentially, f o:r:: the /chair .. · 

I believe that there were seven appointments made in August 

of '05, so there were eight f6lk~ who carried over from the 

2005 Committee. 

Mr. Meyer. Eight carried over, and six changedfroTTl-~. 

Mr, Tober. Seven were added, and six changed fiom the 

carryover. 

Mr. Meyer. Okay; so six. of eight changed their votes 

is what the b6ttom line i~ on that; is· that righ~? 

Mr. Tober. That is correct. 

Mr. Meyer. Thank you. 

I also ha,d a questio~ about a di~f~re~t section~of 

your statement. If people are looking ·at your written 

statement, it's on page 8. You had a quote from a lawyer 

,who said, quote, Mr. Ka,vanaugh did not handle the case well 

as ah advocate and dissembled. r·would like to learn 

anything more I can about what that refer~ed to. 'i realize 

you can only go so far, but what was .meant by he 

dissembled?' 
;·· ' 

Mr. Tober. Well) I will turn that over·· to Ms; Tucker 

·in a minute, but as you know, Jon, ~e cartnbt give 

information out that would tend .to attribute to anybody who 

' the comments are coming from. 

Mr. Meyer. No, I urtderstand, and I am asking ,for any 



identification. I'm just trying to· get some clarification .. 

on wha~ is meant by that statement. 

Mr. Tober. Marna? 

Ms. Tucker. I can only give you the quote of what 

that person said who was involved in.that ca,;se, but I can't 

tell you any more about what the case was or who said it. 

Mr. Meyer. No, but did you ask him what he meant by 

that.? 

Ms .. Tucker:.; I understood what he meant.by that. 

What he meant by that, was--_let me see. The quote was 

he did not handle the case we.llas an advocate; he was not 

forceful, and when he dissembled, he did not argue his case 

clearly. When questioned, he did not respond 

appropriately. That is my interpretation. 

Mr. Meyer. Okay; thank you. Okay; I think that wa~ 

all I had. Thank you v~ry much. 

Mr. Flug. This ~s Jim Flug, Senator Kennedy's 

Mr. Artim. And this is Bruce Ar.tim from Senator 

Hatch. After you, can I get q. crack at a guestion .after 

you? 

Mr. Flug. You can· go first so that we have--

~Mr. ~ensen. Let's go to Bruce so that we're--

Mr .. Flug. Yes, sure. 

Mr. Jensen. - -back and forth. 

BruceJ if you want to-: 



'! 

Mr. Artim. Ms. Tucker, when you were describing the r 

process with the names submitted, it sounded as though from 

the White H~use Staf.f Secret&ry th~t Mr. Kavanaugh, he 

submitted a list 0£ names; Is that the only universe of 

people you called upon, or do you have.your own independent 

source of soliciting 6pinion? 

Ms. Tucker. Of people just in the White House, or do 

you mean my universe of contacts? 

Mr. Artim. The way you described it was as if Mr. 
I 

Kavanaugh sub.mitted a list of names. And .did you call only 

the people on that list? 

Ms. Tucker. Qh, no. My process was, as !'said 

before, I read the ~DQ, which lis~ed the names of counsel 

on cases and people who were involved with JVJr. Kavanaugh in 

his various areas of employment. I contacted those peopl~. 

I contacted an independertt list, not all of the people but 

most Df the people that Mr. Kavanaugh had giyen me as a 

separate list, plus I went through all of the cases and 

contacted judges who heard his ar~u~ents. 

Mr. Artim .. But on the White House and the~-. 

particularly in this last role as staff secretary, can you 

give us---:I know you can't identify names, but can you give 

us sort of a flavor and perhaps quantify, you said, you 

mention~d Cabinet se~retaries? I mean, ire we ~lsd talking 

sub-Cabinet officials? Can you give me--was it a 



smatteririg of people? How m~ny people are we talking.ab6ut 

from the sta£f secretary r6les? I also presume you might 

have extensive contacts with other White House components 

and ClMB ahd other entities. How did you relate to those 

other Whit~ House off ices1 

Ms. Tucker. I contacted everyone whom I coul~ contact 

wh6 had a conrlection with Mr. Kavanaugh in his r6le as 

"'-
staff secretary. Now, of course, as staff seoreta~y~ 

although that role deals with reviewing .the paper that goes 

to the .President direc.tly, what the role also involves is 

he has to contact various people in the Cabinet or sub-

.Cabinet positions in order to make surethat he presents 

the issues properly t6 the Piesident. So I .would'talk to 

people he would h~ve ~o deal with in his role as staff 

secretary.. 

·Mr. Artim. I'm j~st trying to get a feel. There's a 

lot of Cabine~ Depart~ents the White House could-~! mean, 

was it. 10 people? Twenty? About how many people are we 

talking about? 
'1 / 

Ms.. Tucker. I coritatted several people. I don't know 

c the exact number. 

Mr. Artim. And were there people on the list of names 

that he submitted that you didn't conta~t? 

Ms. Tuckei. Yes. 

Mr. Artim. And, I mean, you may not be able.to answer 



th~s, and if you can't, don't, but ~s there a way that you-

...,could you roughly say, of the people's names he·E:Jubmitted, 

did yo~ ~6ntact half of them? Not all of them, but a 

quarte~, ~oughly how many people did you contact? 

Ms. Tucker. 
~ .. , ~ 

Well, the people that I didn't contact, 
. ,., . •''' 

most of them hqd beert contacted by my predecessor,Pamela 

Bresnahan, and.I didn't see any necessity to repeat that at 

the time. Bu~ ther~ were people that I not seen who~-that 

she had not contacted ~hat·I tried to contact. It was· the. 

vast majority of people on his list. 

Mr. Artim. s6 it was on his list. Between th~ two of 

you, you say the vast majority were contacted? 

Ms. Tucker. Yes. 

Mr. Artim. And the.list also dealt with also other 

. White House components? 

Ms. Tucker. r don It know what you mean by that.' 

Mr. Artim. OMB, USTR, Council of Economic Advisors, 

all the various entities: that make up the Wh~te House,. 

which I presume. in·that role,· he's also refereeing not just 

among the Departments and agencies; he's also probably 

refereeing among Whit~ House c6mpor:i~nts. 

Ms. Tucker. Well, all I know is who I spoke to, and 

these were people who had h~d contacts with him in his job 

. as staff secretary.· I don'. t want to violate the cdnfidenc·e 

of people that I spoke to. 



Mr. Artim. But can you at least tell us, were .there 

people from other Whit:e Hoµse components? Are you saying, 

are they just Cabinet officials or sub-Cabinet officials? 

Ms. Tucker. They're from all different branches. 

They're from different branc;hes. Some are C~birtet, sub-

Cabinet, White House Office, superiors to hi~, p~Ople who 

were colleagues of his. 

Senator Sessions. This i~ Senator Jef~ Sessions. I 

had to slip out for a moment to p:reside in the Senate, and 

I have been relieved. Could I ask a few quick questi6ni? 

Mr. Jensen. Yes, please, Senator~ 

·, 

Senator Sessions~ Stephen Tobe~, are you there still? 

. ' 

Mr. Tober, I'~ here~ Senator .. 

Senator Sessions. Yes; we11 qualified; what· 

percentage of the people that are nqminated get well 

qualified? 

Mr. Tober. Senator, I don't know what percentage that 

would be, and I don't know how far back we would look to 
: ,' 

give you an answer. I do know ~ signif ic.ant number of 

people receive well qualified. We have a significant 

number of people who g'et qualified; and of course, we have 

the mix. .we have people who receive a. split vo:te, · even 

thoush the majority rating is.the official rating. 

Senator Sessions. When K_avanaugh .was · f lrst given a 

we.11 quali·fied rating, and a number of voters gave him 



. qualified, he was relatively young. Were there other· 

factors in his background? What other factors in his 

back~round piayed positively and negatively in that 

evc;i.1uation. 

Mr. Tober. In the. '0.3 and 1'05 evaluations? 

Senator Sessions~ Yes, in the original . 

. Mr. Tober. The positive factors haven't changed a 

whole lot. He is found to have high integrity; He is 

found to be brilliant~ He is. a very skilled.writer and 

legal analyst. He has those compon~nts, and I have sa·id 

this before, but .I think you were probably doing better 

thirigs: he has those skills that will serve hi~ we11 1 ' 

certainly; 6n a Federal court. 

What was of concern back in .'03 and '05 and became, if 

you ~ill, a more enhanced cbncern in '06 wa~ the fact that 

his experience in the traditional notions of practice have 

been very thin; in £act, ih some areai, extremely th{n: 

He has never tried a case t~ verdict.or judgment. 

Every experience he had in the traditional s·ettiri.g of 'a 

cotirtroom iri the traditional sense of the word was, with 

senior counsel pr~s~nt. He 'has minimal or at least nominal 

.·criminal experience. And the concern was that to put him 

on summarily to a Federal bench where at that level of 

appellate. review, he is going to be r~ading transcripts of 

records from a trial setting that he is .not completely. 



familiar with is of some contern. 

Senator Sessions. I guess w:h_at I would like tp pursue ·;, 

the.re .is the American Bar Association likes that. kind of 

experience .. You ~on't always get the complete package, but 

you like the kind of experience that shows. corporate 

practice or at least law firm practice, government servioe,-

i 

criminal as well as civil, . and trial practice. Those an~ 

the thing~ you like to see in a peifect ~ominee, right? 

M~. Tober~ Well, we write ~bout it in our 

· backgrounder; We talk about the fact, Senator, ·that' we 

like to see someone having at le,~st 12 years of traditional 

experience, and this nominee back then, and even toda'y to a 

degree, was just about bare -0n the cusp. 

We don't stop there. We go on and say-~but to answer 

your question, you know, we are not so bound by simple 

traditional n6tions that we are not willing ~q look at 

other expeiience. 

Senator Sessiohs . I would not~ .that .despi~e so~e of 

.. those lacks, the Committee gave him .. a well.qualified 

rating, because appareritly,_they found bis writingskillsi 
. r . 

his· brilli.ant background, the fact that he had clerked for 

two circuit judges arid I guess a Supreme Cou::r-t'Judge, all.· 

of those were factors that mo,;_,ed him in some way higher '" 

·than you would normally expect a person to be. 

Mr. Tober.. He did indeed recei v'e a substanticii.l 



. . . 
majority vote of well q;ualified. Yes, he did. 

Senator Sessions. Well, now, it sort of seems like 

what's changed is that\he is serving at the call of the 

Presid~nt in a position that the President needs him in, in 

a critical ~ers6nal position to the President, and having 

·served in that P?Sition riow for how long has it been in the 

White House there, it has further removed him from the 

things yoli normally look for, which is courtroom arid law 

firm and litigation.experience. 

Mr. Tober. Well--

Senator Sessions. Is that what's happening here · 

basically? 

Mr. Tober. No, sir, that's not a fair statement.· 
' . 

Senator Sessions. , I' don't mean to be arguing in the 

sense of being that tpat's negative, but it seems to me 

that's kind of what happened, that he's been away from the 

practice~ and yo0 said in you~ statement that be ~as 

insulated, so he's been away ~rid away from the a~gressive 

full-time practice of law. That is undeniable. 
l . . . 

' Mr. Tober. Well, I agree with all of that. I guess 

that what I'm trying to say is that running throughcmt his 

rating, even when it was well qualified,, there has always 

.been a constancy of concern about his lack of e~perience, 
( 

which resulted in a minority~of qualified. What'~ 

happened, in my opinion, having read all this and 



1:-•. ~--. ·-

synthesized it into the. report you're referring to, is that 

by expanding the uhiverse of contact, incltiding judges, for 

ex~ample, whom we had not previously talked to about the 

hominee and any other lawyers as well that ihe professional. 

experience conce~n was heightened a bit, and the additional 

concern about get insulation, the question of 

openmindedness and judicial. temperament in our standards 

was ~aised esse~tially.for the first time~ 

And 1the combination of those two, Senator, in my 

opinion, is ~hat brotight abciut the substanti~l majority 

qualified/minority well qualified vote. He is qualified 'to 

serve on the Federal bench. 

Senator Sessions: Yes, well, I appreciate that, and r 
·,, ., 

would. share that ... I am. not sure..,~one thing I would say in 

defense of your rating as a relatively young lawyer, he was 

fortunate to get.a well qualified to begin with.• I ·mean, 

you know yo~ hav~ to be pretty good to get that level, and 

I think the fact th!at·it has edged away.is of concern to me 

·in the sense·· that I am not sure what exactly would have 

occurred to justify that. But I know that you indicate a 

couple of things there that~-anjway, I dori 1 t have that 

before me; I was going to•read something in the .report~ 

So he is at the pointwhere he remains rated 

qualified. He is qualified. So~e still rate him ~ell 

qualified, and'you attribute the change to his--talking to 



different people more. than the fact of a change in his 

duties or both? 

Mr .. Tober. I take it as. attributed to the expanded 

·universe of people with whom we spoke who have.had contact 

with the nominee; .updating that corttact to the pr~s~ht; 

that is correct. 

Senator Sessions, And could they, have factored in his 

away ~rom active practice ih their evaluation of his 

qualifications. 

1 Mr. Tober.· I certainly think that's fair, but I don't 

want to characterize it as an overriding·concern. lt I 8 

been there. 

Senator Sessions. Right. 

Mr. Tober. It's been.there all along. It seemed to 

get some additional, if you will,· traction when _we· did this 

review, ·the supplemental evaluatiori, ahd then, got it 

combined with a, new :Ls sue th~t hadn't prevh'.>i.rnly been in 

the earlier report about his insular position~ 

Senato~ Sessions. O~~y; I~~e got to run back. Thank 

you so much. We appreciate the work that you do,' and I· 

' ' -
believe the nominee is a stlperb persop who has a rema~kable 

record of achievement, and .we thank you for cont,inuing to 

provide your information t~ .us. 

Mr. Tober. Thank you, Senator. 

Senator Sessions. Thank you. 



Mr. Flug. Mr. Tober, I 1 11 continue where I· left· off. 

. . . . 

Senator Hatch'. Jim, let me step in. This is ~senator 

Hatch; just for a second. 

Mr. Flug. Oh,· hi, Senator. 

Senator Hatch. So I just wanted to mention that am I 

correct in 109kin~ at 'the rec6rd that. he 1 s had s9me 24 

people evaluate him, and not one has. found him not 

qualifie.d? . 

Mr. ·Tober. I don't know the number to be 24. I take 

your word on tha~. But it is true: there .isvnot a single 

not qualified vote in. the picture. 

Senator Hatch. Out of all of those who have looked at 

his record. 

Mr. Tober~ That is correct, Senator. 
) 

Senator Hatch. Well, we appreciate all .. you do, and I 

just wanted to mention that to you. But thahks for ail you 

·do. 

Mr. T.ober. Thank you, sir. 

Mr ... Flug. Are.you through, Senator? 

Senator Hatch. Yes., I'm through. 

Mr~ Flug. Okay; Mr. Tober, both you and Ms. Tucker 

used the word in your oral and written statements concerns 

of the Com.mi t tee. You, on page 7 onto 8, talk about then 

present concerns·~egarding this nomineeis.breadth of 

pro:f~ssional experience. And then; Ms. Tucker talked.in 
';··,.: 



the context. of his White House service about asking him 

about specific areas of concern. Are those two cong:tµent 

with one another? Are you two talking about the same, .· 

thing, or is Ms. Tucker, in her White House inquiries, 

'talking about other. ~reas .of concern than the areas of 

concerned mentioned in your. presentation? 

Mr. Tober. Is.this Mr; Flug? Is that who'~ asking ni.e· 

the question? · 

Mr. Flug. Oh, okay; thank you, sir. 

Mr. Tober. I hope we're congruent, becaus~ what I 

tried to do was read everything that I have in these 

conf id~ntial reports and create a synthesi~ cif that , 

information. But I' 11 certainly let Ms. Tucker speak· to·· 

·that. 

Ms. Tucker. Well, I think we certainly are:congruent,, 
: . " . ' 

but there are two different' areas that I add~ess~d my 

comments to .. One is his.legal wo:rk prior' to being in the 

White House as well as h~~ work in the White'Hoµse~ so-~ 

and Mr .. Tober $hared that information with me as well. 

Mr. Flug. And when you say you asked him about 

specific areas of concern/ did you have specific areas of 

concern with his work at:the White Hou~e as .well as with 

his work prior to the White House? 

Ms. Tucker. Yes. 

'Mr. Flug, J 'm sorry? 



Ms. Tucker. , Yes. 

Mr. Flug. And what were the areas of concern that you 

/had with his work at the White.·House? 

JVls. Tucker. On~ of the areas•of concern that we had 

with his work at the White House is first of all, I ought 

to say ~e asked him abbut several ~reas of. concern that we 

had; and on the whole, he hatj very little information and 

was not involved in things lik~ tortu~e memos and issu~s 

like that.. We asked hi~ a~out a panoply of questions like 

that. 

We also asked him, ·and the main area of concern we.had 

was the ~ssue of since he had been in charge of judicial 

nominations while he was in the White House Cou.ns.el 's 

offJce, during that time, although he did not kr;iow about l.t 

u.ntit much, much later, during that t'ime ,_ there were 

documents taken from Senate computers by one Manuel 
• I , ' 

Miranda,_ and we questioned him wheth~r he had if:tformation · 

from Mr: Miranda, since the Senate investigation only dealt 

~ith the matters that had occurred in the Senate.. It did ' . . 

not go, to any people in the White House. 

We asked him whether the. ~h{t~ House had an 

irivestigatl.on, and we asked him whether--his views on this 

and whether he had been involved in any way with what I 

- ,, . . 
wi11 call the ptirloined document .. He was not--he had no 

· kno~ledge of the fact that documents o~ information he was 



I 
getting from Mr. Miranda was taken. improperly. He did not 

know about that until way after the fact. 

And our concern was that we asked.him whether he felt, 

·has he checked into whet.her. or not the process for which he 

was responsible, namely, presenting to the· President issues 

concerning judges, ~hether that process had been 

compromised.·- And he did not express any concern that the 

proc_ess had been compromised or that there was the nee.d for 

a White ~ouse 'investigation., He said he was already 

finished with that job. The appointees had already been 

confirmed, and there was no need for an. investigation from 

his point of view. 

We were concerned about his lack of interest in that 
'• / .· ,. ' 

particular matter, considering we felt that the proc~ss for 

0hich he was ~esponsible bad been tainted and needed· some 

further examination. 

Mr. Jensen. Could I ask a follow-up question? When 

you say·we--

Mr. Flug. Can I fiqish my questions? 

Mr. Jensen. This is just a clarification~ When you 

say we, who are you referring to, Ms. Tucker? You said 

that w~ were concerned thai he did nbt express enough 

concern over the investigation. 

Ms. Tucker. This occurred at our interview with Mr. 

Kavanaugh and John Payton, who is here with me today.and 



can ~answer this as·well, we conducted the interview,· And 

Mr. Payton and I were both concerned about that. 

Mr. Flug. And did you··· express .those concerns to· h:lm?. 

Ms. Tuck~r. Yes. 

Mf. Flug~ And how did he respond? 

Ms~ Tucker. I'll let Mr; Payton respond to that .. 

Mf; Payton. Hi, this is John Payton. Just as Ms. 

Tucker just descri~ed; he was surprised to even reflect 

back on the . issues, .. since he thought that he had left that. 

behind,· and he really did !"lot~ appreciate any need to worry 

about wbat had happened in the off ice that he had left 

behind; 

Mr. Flug. So he had no inclinat·ion to answer the 

que~tion of whether, after t~e fact, he r~al)zed that, 

.materials which may have. be.en dissemin.ated to him or 
\ 

informatiori which may have, ~een disseminated to him were, 

to use Ms. Tticker's word, tainted. 

Mr; Payton. ·~Well, he didn't deny tha.t. He didn't 

' deny that something that shouldri' t have happeried had 

happened. 

Mr. Flug. I'm sorry, .but he was not concerned that 
' ' ' 

the process that he was in charge of may have-been tainted 
'r r 

by that information, and he Showed rtci inclination tci 

inquire .further into that? 

Mr. Payton. He thought he had no continuing, 



-; 

resportsibility. to look into that or to see what had 

happened oi didn't· happen. 

Mr. Flug. And were you aware that Members ·of the 
''·.· 

Committee had ~sked him 9imileir que.stions two years closer··· 

to the fact and that he had not replied at that time, too? 

Ms. Tucker. We had read the Serrate hear:ings .and those 

questions, t.he written questions as well as the' h~aring. 

Mr. Flug. Thank you. 

Mr. Jensen. Any Republicans. that have any quest.i,orts? 

Mr. Pai. This is Aj it. Pai w'i th Senator Bro\f;ln:back. I 

ju~t had nne questiori. 

How many nominees have received three eva'.luatic:ln's 

before? Do you know? 

Mr. Tober. How many nominees have received three 
.. 

evaluation:::; before? You know, I don't know ·the·.answer to 

that. I'd be happy to ·ask staff to take a iook a2 it. 

Please keep iµ mind that prior to 2001, it was a 

prenomination screening process, so that the likelihood of 

that probably was· dampened by the fact that things would 

n6t have gone up three times, and it all ~epends on the 

factor of how many .times people ,have been. renomfnated. But 

I will certainly find out and try to ·let yciu know. 

'Mr. Flug . I do need to ask one other. follovj up. Ms,. 

. Tucker mentioned 'that one of the areq.s concerned was 

torture. At the time, that you last interviewed him, had 

,.'1-. 



the issue of NSA wiretapping become public, and did you 

cover that as well? 

Ms. Tucker. Yes, we did ask him about that, and he 

said· that he had no· i,nvol ve.ment with that issue in the· 
. ,. ~·· ; 

White House. 

Mr. Flug. And do you.keep a transcript of your 

interviews? 

Ms. Tucker. No. 

Mr. Tober. Wait, wait. Mr. ~lug? 

Mr. Flug. Yes. 

Mr. Tober. The answer is we don 1 t keep transcripts, .. 

and we don't produce them anyway, but we don't have them. 

Mr. Flug. Okay'. 

Mr. Tober. P~te, Mr. Flug, are you done, I don't m~an 

to- -

Mr. Flug. No; I mean, I assume that it is 

appropriate, if you do appear tomorrow, and Senators have 

additional questions.along these lines; these issues;< 

obviously from the previous ~uestions and from the follow-

up questions that were propounded more recently ~re very 

important to the Members -of the Cammi t.tee, and the prior 

answers I think were general}y thought to be not fully 

responsive. So if there is a desire to ~o ~ore deeply into 

this~ his answers to you, and you may have asked better 

questions than the Committee.did will be relevant to the 



I' 

Committee. 

M~. Tober. No, I underst~nd tha:t, sir. 

Pete, can I go back and j us,t add one, thing to--. 

Mr. Jensen. Su.:fe., 

Mr: Tober. --I believe the gentleman from SeqatQr 

Brown.back's office· a'sked me about the three· reviews?.· 

Just so it's clear here, and I think it is, ,Mr. 
• • • I 

Kavanaugh was nom1nated tor the first time in 2003. He was 

renominated in 2005, arid he was renominated in 2006. Am I 

cor:rect on that, Pete? 

Mr., Jensen. Yes. 

Mr. Tober. And our practice, which started actually 

ju,st a littl~ while ago during Tom Hayward's term wc;i,s that.,,, 

when there is a renomination, we are, ,going, to bring ,forward 

from the last date of the origiriaI final report a 

supplemental evaluation of what that nomination is all 

about. So we've done that here, and r will find, out if 

that's happened before and, if so, how many times.· 

Mr. Jensen. All right; Ajit, do you have anything 

, further? 
' . 

Mr. Pai. No, 'I 9uess would that , inquiryj lnclude, 

before you adopted that practice, more thari one 
~ . '·' 

prenomination evaluation? Were, there any qa'ses in which •a 

nominee.was evaluated more than once prenomin~tion? 

Mr. Tober. The good news is l do~' t know the answer , 



. ' ' ' -

to that. We ca~ go and try to find out, but I suspect, 

given the very different coloration of the way things. 

worked prenomination, I don't thihk you're going to find 

much information {ram that. So it's going to be a q1.lesti()n 

of going forward from that date, I think, frcim 2001, with 

.maybe a couple of rare exceptions. There may have been 

some Supreme Couri things that we can take a look-at for 

you, but we 1 r1 get whatever.data there is. 

Mr. Pai. Okay; thanks. 

Mr. Jensen. Any other questions? 

Okay;. Steve, just before we conclude, just a couple of 

last follow µps, Would you restate the total numbe;r- .()f 

people that were interviewed over the course of the' three 

·evaluations? 

Mr. Tober. Yes;. it Is in my statem~nt i Pete .. Let me 

\, turn to it .. What I said was--I think it should be .on page 

i 

6, .Ibelieve, of what I've submitted to you 1 where I 
. . . -

{ndicate that generally, we require a minimum 40 to 60 
,.) .. . 

.contacts, and in 2003~ there ~ere 55 such contacts, afid in 

2006, there were 91 such contacts. 

Mr. Jensen. ·Okay; and of those-~does that include 

·2005? 

Mr. Tober. 2005, there were no third ~arty 

interviews. The 2005 update, and. Ms. Bresnahan is on the 

linej she can clarif~ it, if you.wish, did not include"any 



\ 

additional interviews other than a, follow-up interview with 

the nominee himself. 

Mr. jensen~ Why were none done in 2005 and an 

additional--what is it--36 done in 2006? 

Mr. Tober. I'll turn it.over to Ms .. Bre~nahan to 

answer that .. 

Ms. Bresnahan. My memory is, Pete, that .. what happened 

was in 2003, we did 55, I did 55 some-odd interviews, . and .. 

then, within the yea~, h~ was renominated,· and then, .the 
. \ 

committee or Tom Hayward; and I believe we had a Committee 

meeting, and the dectsion·was made for those ~eople 

renominated within the year, we were not going to do 

additiorlal interviews. 

Then, as time passed, and it went to the new 

Committee, it's my understanding that then, since more time 

had p~ssed, they had decided to contact additional people. 

All I did for my renomination was we didil.'t have an updated 

personal data questionnaire, so I called the nominee, , spoke 

to hirn, asked what had charrged,.what was going to be 

~hanged on the new Senate que~tionnaire, and we did an 

additional Lexis search arid 

add~tional writing samples, 

asked 
\ 

which 
I 
\ 

if there had been any 

we ·knew, since he had 

·been a staff .~ecretary, there reail~ 0ouldn't have be~n. 

Mr. Jensen. And of those 91, can you tell us how many 
\ 

recommended him for the D.C. Circuit? 



Mr. Tober. I can 1 .t, Pete . We . don 1 t count numbers. 

. . 
We dori.'t do empirical data. I mean, there were a 

significant number of folks who thought and. do think that 

"' Mr. Kavanaugh is an extremely competent and able indi victual 

to go on the bench. There are some people, again, not ari 

insignificant number, who had some concerns about his lack 

of experience, ·and t,here were a number of people who felt 

that he was insulated and were toncerned about what the . . 

picture of his life 1 s experieri..ce .would be that he might 

bring as an alternative to public servj,.ce. 

And that i~ the blend of wha~ the repb~t i~, and as 

I'm sure you kno~, Pete, what hap'pens is the, underlying 1 03 

rep6rt, as it is, and the '06 report~ as it is, are 
. •, 

presented to 14 people on this Committ~e~ whb 

independently~ in their own offices, witho~t connecting 

'with each other, read ~verything and re~ch a conclusi6n of 

their own, independently, 1applying either well qualified, 

qualifted, or not qualified standards that are clearly 

defined in our backgrounder. And'you have, in this case, 

from having read all of that material, a substantial 

majority qualified and a miriority well qualified. 

\ 
· Ms. Bresnahan. Also, just to be clear- -this is Pam 

Bre~nahan speaking--some of the people Ms. Tucker talked 

td, I also talked to. So i~ isn 1 t 9l plus 55. 

. \ 
Mr. Jensen. Okay; those are--



~-------~-~------------

1 ···. 

Mr. Bre~mahan. I think that's what you were askin~, 

Pete. 

Mr. Jensen. So.there's a.total of 91 interviews; we 

dbn't know how many interviewees;' .is that,--

Ms. Bresnahan. Oh, no,· there's at least 91 plus some 

number, because the 55 has some overlap, because Ms. Tucker 

talked to some of the same people, it is my understanding:.· 

I mean, she can speak for herself. ·She's oh the phone, but 

·it wasn't 100 percent different .each time~ 

Mr. Paytort. But 'it is 91 contacts, 91 people. 

Ms. Bresnahan. Plus some number of the 55 I talked to 

that she did hot talk to. 

·, 

Mr. Payton. There was some overlap, Pete; 

Mr. Tober. There was some over~ap. 

Mr. Payton. I misunderstood YOlJ.r question. There 

clearly was some overlap. 

Ms. B~esn~han. That's what. he asked. 

Mr. Payton. I'm sorry; I mi~understobd. ·But .ther~ 

were judges who had not been talked to before wh6 were 

talked to this time, and the· universe was expanded; for the· 

reasons that we already explained. 

'Mr. Jensen. And I don't know if this ls a que.stion 

for Mr. Payton or for jou; ~teve, but for the first two 

evaluations, it 'was just.Ms. Bresnahan that was assigned to 

conduct the investigation.· Why was Mr. Payton brought in 

' ... ,-, 



for the third evaluation? 

Mr. Tober. Well, our backgrounder addresses that t.oo, 

Pete. ~here are times"when in the disc~etiori 6f the;chair, 

if it is· appropriate to have a second interviewer brought 

in, you' 11 ·do so, an_d frankly, it was because of the fact 

·that this'was a nominee.that Ms. Tucker was spending a 

considerable amoun~ pf ,time on:· 

This i~ a vol~nte~r organization, These people, you 
! 

may recall, were'just coming off of having done a· 

significant amount of work on Justice.Roberts, Harriet 

Miers,· Justice Al ito, T tried to make sure that nob.ody was 
~ "'<I 

overloaded or felt pressured, and we do all of. that, Pete, . 

as you also know, within 30 days and the~ try tq get to a 
' ·. 

vote ·in five. 

So we were moving· along as smartly as we could given 

the caseload we had.· That was my suggestion; p.nd I was 

happy with it. 

·.Mr. Jensen. So Mr .. Payton was brought in to assist 

Ms.· Tucker.· 

Mr. Payton. That is correct, that is right. 

Mr. Jensen. In th~ evaltiation~ 

Mr. Payton. That isright. 

Ms.· Tucker.. At the 'White House intervi'ew, at that 

level. 

Mr. Jensen. So Mr. Tucker was not irtvolved with all 



df the interviews, just-7 
'·~·· 

Mr. Payton. Mr. 'Payton. 

Mr. Jensen. Mr. Payton; excuse me. 

Mr. Tobei. Mi. Paytori was not involved, ~xcept at the 

interview. 

Mr. Jensen .. Except at the:..-

Mr. Payton. Interview.· 

·Mr'. Jensen. The interview with Mr .. Kavanaugh. 

Mr~ Payton. That is correct. 

Mr. Jensen. Okay. 

Mr. Tober. And \..some of the process that· occurs· 

thereafter; 

Mr .. Payton. Yes, right. 
. . ' 

Mr. Jensen. And I know ahead of time y6u 1 re not going 

to answer this question, Steve, but I'm going to.ask it 

anyway. 

·Mr.·· Tober. Go right ahead, Pete. 

[Laughter.] 

Mr. Jens.en. I understand that the investigators issu~ 

a r~commended rating to the Committee. Will you tell us 

the recommended ratings for· any of the t.hree ~valuations 

that were Conducted? 

Mr. Tober. You read it·right _to begin with, Pete. I 

. cannot an:·swer that quest ion. And since this is a public 

transcript, I-hate to leave it just at that. Le.t me point 



out. that the reason that this process works for.the 

American people, for the Senate, for the American Bar 

Association, ••is, that we maintain confidences, not just for 

the people that 0e talk to but for the individuals who are 

.asked to carry this heavy load of putting this work 

together. 

If we began to peel that back, this proc~ss, which has 

been.taking place since 1948, would not be working as· well. 

as it is, and it probably wouldn't be very useful to 

anybody. And so, I hope and trust that you understand 

that. It is .with reluctance that I don't answer your 

question, but there is a great s~nse of history weighing 

down on me for.that very reason. 

Mr. Jensen. Okay; sure. And then, the last question, 

I 
and then, we'll let you go with appreciation for being on 

this call, and that is would you just go over one last 

time, I kno0 it's ·in your stat~ment, but I'd like to get it 

back on the record, ex~ctly how ybu define' both well 

qualified and qualJf ied. 

Mr. Tober. I'.d be hap~y tb. It is in the statement. 

Let .me turn, if I can, to th,e backgrounder that;. as you 

know, is a public document we put oµt to everybody involved 
I 

in this process, and let me just read it. And it says, 

q~ote, to merit a rating of well qualified, the nominee 

must·. be at the top of the legal profession .~n his or· her 

{. 



legal community, of outstanding legal ability, breadth_ of 

experience and the highest reputation for integrity, and 

either demonstrate or exhibit the capacity for;judicial 

temperament. 

The rating of qualified means that the nominee meets 

the Committees' very high stanO.ards with respect to 
( 

integrity, professional- competence, .. and judicial 

temperament and that the Committee believes that the 

nominee will be able to perform satisfactbrily all of the 

.. duties and responsibilities required by· the :high office of, 

a Federal judge~ 

. . ( 
In anticipation of your nex.t question, yes, Mr: 

Kavanaugh is.qualified with,a minority well qualified. 

Mr. Paris. Pete, Steve, can I just j um:P, in f~r a 

second? This· is Jeremy Par.is .. 

Mr. Tober. Sure, Jeremy. 

.Mr. Paris. I hate to maybe beat a dead.horse, but 

according to the written testimony, in 2-003; there were 55 

contacts. And then, ·there were 19 more judges and 1 7 mor.e 

lawyers, which is 36 added 'to the original 55 makes. 91. Sb 

am I correct that it is actually 91 contacts ... with judges, 

lawyers, and others, with information? 

Mr. Tober. Yes, and if ~pu go on trom there, just to 

make sure I'm clear about this, Jeremy, in the next 

sentence in that paragraph--



~-----.-- ---- ·----

Mr. Paris. Yes. 

Mr. Tober. --I indicated that not all the original 55 

contacts were summarily repeated. 
I 

Mr. Paris. Right, right. 

Mr .. Tober. Thus, there was a larger group given an 

opportunity in 2006 to pass comment. 

Mr. Paris. Thank you. I just warited to clarify. 
\, 

/ 

Mr. Tober.· Yes. 

·Mr. Jensen. So is it correc~ to say that of the 42 

votes 't'hcit have been cast by this Committee on Mr. 

Kavanaugh's nomination, every one of those· votes agre~d 

.that he met the very high standards of either we'.11 

qualified or qualified to,be a circu:lt judge on the D.C .. 

Circuit, and not one of those 42,vot~s .believed th~t he was' 

not qualified?- ·" 

Mr. Tober. Well, I don't know about the math, but I· 

do know about the categories, and I can tell you that I 

hav~ not seen a vote of not qualified in this.matter. 

Mr. Jensen. Okay; Steve, thank you ve:ry much. to all 

of the AB~ repr~sentatives on the phone. Orr behalf of the 
. . 

Chairman, we appreciate all of the many hour~ that you 
, . , 

sp~nd doing this, _and it is a tremendous s~rvic~ to the 

Committee, and thank you very much for being on today~ 

Mr. Tober. Thank·you, Pete, '<ind thank you, everybody 

else. 



[Whereupon, at 3 14 p.m. the hearing was concluded.] 
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